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Independent Auditors Repart

To the Members of CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the standalone financial statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited (the
"Company”) which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the standalone
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in
equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and
other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue Recognition

See Note 3(i) and Note 21 to standalone financial statements

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The key audit matter

| The Company recognizes revenue when the | In view of the significance of the matter, we applied
control of goods being sold is transferred to the | the following audit procedures in this area, among
customer. A substantial part of Company's | others, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
revenue relates to Jewelry which involves large | evidence-
number of individual sales contracts having | 1. Assessed the appropriateness of the accounting
varied contractual terms with retail customers, | policy for revenue recognition as per relevant

distributors and franchisees. accounting standard.
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The Company and its external stakeholders
focus on revenue as a key performance
indicator and considering there are
performance targets, this increases the risk of
misstatement of the timing and existence of
revenue recognized.

There is risk of revenue being recognized
inappropriately for sales made through retail
outlets on cash and carry basis and risk of
misstatement of existence of revenue in case
of non-retail sales.

In view of the above, we have identified
existence (retail and non retail sales) and
completeness (retail sales only) of revenue as
a key audit matter.

2. Evaluated the design and implementation of key

financial controls and their operating effectiveness
with respect to revenue recognition transactions
selected on a sample basis. These include general
IT controls and key application controls over the IT
system which govern revenue recognition, including
access controls, controls over program changes and
interfaces between different systems.

3. Perused key contracts with distributors and
franchisees selected using statistical sampling to
understand terms and conditions particularly relating
to acceptance of goods.

4. For retail sales, performed substantive testing
using selecting sampling on sales made at the retail
outlets and tested the underlying documents, which
included tracing sales to collection reports and bank
statements.

5. For sales (other than retail sales), we performed
substantive testing using statistical sampling and
tested the underlying documentation including
verification of invoices, proof of delivery and
collections thereon.

6. Additionally, we have tested the underlying
invoices of the selected samples, verifying attributes
such as price, discount, and making charges.

7. Performed substantive testing using statistical
sampling on the collection report and tested
underlying sales to test existence and completeness
of revenues for Jewelry.

8. Tested credit notes issued to retail customers
selected using statistical sampling on sales return
during the year and subsequent to the year end.

9. Tested sales transactions using statistical
sampling on sales (where applicable) made
immediately pre and post year end, agreed the
period of revenue recognition to the underlying
documents.

Inventories

| See Note 3(vii) Note 10 to standalone financial statements

The key audit matter

The Company's inventories primarily comprise
high value items like Jewellery (gold,
diamonds, gemstones etc.). The Company
holds inventory at various locations including
factories, stores (retail outlets) and third-party
locations.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
others, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence:

1. Evaluated and tested the design, implementation
and the operating effectiveness of key controls that
the Company has in relation to the safeguarding and
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There is a significant risk of loss of inventory | physical verification of inventory including the
given the high value and nature of the inventory | appropriateness of the Company's standard
invalved. operating procedures for conducting, recording and

reconciling physical verification of inventories and
In view of the above, we have identified | tested the implementation thereof.
existence of physical inventories as a key audit | 2. Evaluated the design, implementation and
matter. operating effectiveness of general IT controls and
key application controls over the Company’s IT
systems including those relating to recording of
inventory quantites on occurrence of each
transaction, including access controls, controls over
program changes, interfaces between different
systems.
3. For the locations selected using statistical
sampling, we attended physical verification of
inventory conducted by the Company and tested roll-
[ forward/roll-backward working provided by the
management as at the year end, where applicable.
We have also performed stock counts at stores
selected using statistical sampling. We also checked
reconciliation of inventories as per physical inventory
verification and book records for samples selected

using statistical sampling.
‘ 4. Performed surprise stock count at selected stores
on sample basis.
5. For samples selected using statistical sampling,
we obtained independent confirmations of
[ inventories held with third parties.
6. Verified the purity of gold content in the jewelry

‘ item using Karat-meter for the samples selected as
part of year end physical verification process and
traced to the hallmark.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section

134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true

and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
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cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
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and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company on 1 April
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, none of the directors of the
Company is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the standalone financial
statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 41(vii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
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by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 41(viii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR &Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248\W/W-100022

{

rjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 07 May 2025 ICAIl UDIN:25218495BMOPAX5987
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(i)

(i) (a)

(iii)

(b)

(a)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies was noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically
verified by the management during the year.For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end,
written confirmations have been obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of
receipts has been linked with inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification
is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No
discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, the Company has not made investments and not provided any
guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company
has granted unsecured loans to other parties during the year, in respect of which requisite
information is as below. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms and limited liability partnership during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans to any other entity as below:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(®

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vil) (a)

Particulars Loans

Aggregate amount during the year
-Others Rs. 162 lakhs

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
-Others Rs. 99 lakhs

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans during the year
are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The Company has not made investsments
and not provided any gurantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loan during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products
manufactured by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
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2025 (Continued)

(b)

(viil)

(X) (a)

of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs
or Cess or other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of Nature of Amount Period to Forum where Amoun
the statute the dues (Rs. in which the dispute is t
lakhs) amount pending deposi
relates ted,
(Rs. in
lakhs)
Goods and | Goods and 3.03 | 2018-19 Appellate Authority -
Service Tax | Service Tax
Goods and | Goods and 15.52 | 2017-18 Appellate Authority -
Service Tax | Service Tax
Goods and | Goods and 2.10 | 2017-18 Joint -
Service Tax | Service Tax Commissioner,
West Bengal
Goods and | Goods and 21.75 | 2020-21 Appellate Autharity -
Service Tax | Service Tax
Goods and | Goods and 3.30 | 2018-19 Assistant 0.33
Service Tax | Service Tax Commissioner,
Telangana
Goods and | Goods and 6.55 | 2019-20 Appellate Authority -
Service Tax | Service Tax
Goods and | Goods and 19.79 | 2019-20 Appellate Authority 1.06
Service Tax | Service Tax

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
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Statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined
in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit. :

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(b)

Act, 1834, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given by the management, the group has five
CIC's which are registered with Reserve Bank of India and one CIC which is not required to be
registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing project.
Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

ForBS R & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

£.

rjun Ramesh
Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 07 May 2025 ICAl UDIN:25218495BMOPAX5987
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BS R &Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial
statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Caratlane Trading
Private Limited (“the Company") as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Page 12 of 13



BS R &Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the standalone financial
statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

ol
2

Arjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 07 May 2025 ICAl UDIN:25218495BMOPAX5987

Page 13 of 13



CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulurs

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress *
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Financial assets

i. Investments

ii. Loans receivable

iii. Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
i, Trade receivables
ii. Cash and cash equivalents
iii. Other bank balance
iv. Loans
v. Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets

Assets held for sale
Totnl assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity
Linbilities
Non-current liabilities
Finencial liabilities
i. Borrowings
iia, Lease liabilities
iti. Other financial liabilities
(ther non-current liabilities
Provisions
Tatat Non current liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Gold on loan
iiia. Lease liabilities
iv. Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and
small enterprises
v. Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total current liabilities

Liabilities held for sale
Total liabilities

*Represents amounts less than INR 50,000
Material accounting policies

As per our report of even date attached
for BSR & Co. LLP

(Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

g

Arjun Ra
Partner
Membershiff No. 218495
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025

As

31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

5(1) 7,536 8,721
5(iii) 0 68
6 24,617 24,611
5(ii) 2,632 3,180
5(iv) 448 244
7() - 109
(i) - 4,861
7(iii) 11,630 9,700
8 3,418 3,292
8 1,399 1,017
9 6,402 6,583
58.082 62,386
10 174,777 102,760
110) 2,110 2,169
11(ii) 4,234 2,111
11(iii) 837 504
11Gv) 94 128
11(v) 9,174 5,902
12 18.738 13.908
209.964 127.482
38 . 1,806
268,046 191,674
13 667 667
14 25,567 14.512
26,234 15,179
15¢) 14,146 13,036
15(ii) 33,248 30,791
15(iii) 613 840
16 256 145
17 1,345 1,137
49,608 45,949
18(i) 58,900 46,190
18(ii) 76,696 40,220
18(iii) 5,182 4,457
18(3iv)
4,257 3,414
22,139 22,419
18(v) 3,458 2,842
19 20,551 9,844
20 1,021 1,040
192,204 130,426
38 = 120
268,046 191.674
3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U52393TN2007PTC064830)

Saumen M
ManagingDirector

DIN: 10674640
Place: Murnbai
Date: 07 May 2025

Manoj Bhanawat
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025

AXhok Kumar Sonthalia
Diricror

DIN: 03259683

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025

e 4ﬁ/V”“ '

Kalyanibhai Rhonac
Company Secrelary
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 07 May 2025




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Standalone statement of profit and loss
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the period ended

31 March 2025

For the period ended
31 March 2024

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

e

Arjun Ryihesh

Partner

Membership No. 218495
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED Q

(CIN: U52393TN2007PTC064830)

Manapfng Director
DIN: 10674640
Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2025

Manoj Bhanawat
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025

Revenue from operations 21 415,259 305,815
Other income 22 3011 3.179
Total income (T) 418,270 308,994
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 23 (a) 340,179 201,345
Purchase of stock-in-trade 23 (b) 17,610 24,247
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 23 (c) (54,899) (18,135)
Employee benefits expense 24 18,675 17,013
Finance costs 25 9,492 8,110
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 8,684 8,243
Other expenses 27 58.966 54.564
Total expenses (II) 398,707 295,387
Profit before exceptional item and tax (III) [(T)-(II)] 19,563 13,607
Exceptional item (IV) ( Refer note 42) 5,101 -
Profit before tax (V) [(III)«(IV)] 14,462 13.607
Tax expense (VI)

- Current tax 3,513 -

- Deferred tax 8 (121) 3,530
Profit for the year (A) [(V)-(VD)] 11,070 10,077
Other comprehensive income

Itents that will not be reclassified subsequently fo the statement of profit and loss:

- Remeasurements of employee defined benefit plans (22) (376)
- Income-tax on above 6 95
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (B) (16) (281)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 11,054 9.796

Earnings per equity share (par value of INR 2 per share)

Basic earnings per share (INR) 33.20 30.22
Diluted eamings per share (INR) 28 33.20 2093
Material accounting policies 3

hok Kumar Sonthalia
Wjrecror

DIN: 03259683

Place: Bengaluru

Date; 07 May 2025

e “(Wver -
Kalyanibhai Rhonac
Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Standalone statement of changes in equity

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

|Balance at the 1 April 2023

Changes in equity share capilal during the year *
As at 31 March 2024

Changes in equity share capital during the year

As at 31 March 2025
*Represents amonnis less than INR 50,000

B. Other equity

Particulars

Securities premium

Reserves and surplus

Stock options

onlstanding account

Otlier

compreher

{Re urement
defined benefit obl

ve income

of
ion)

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm rejustration number: 101248W/ W-100022

K.

Arjun Ra
Partner
Membershlyl No. 218495
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025

'The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

“=Manoj Bhanawat

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U52393TN2007PTC064830)

DIN: 10674640
Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2023

DIN: 03259683
Plage: Bengaluru
Datey 07 May 2025

\fa". e

N -
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025

Kalyanibhai Rhonac
Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru

Date 07 May 2025

Balance at the 1 April 2023 41,141 (20,277) (326) 21,402
Premium on shares issued during the year 1 - - - 1
Profit for the year - - 10,077 - 10,077
Modification of ESOP Plan (refer note 13) - (857) (15,830) (16,687)
Share Options exercised 7 N - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) - - - (281) (281)
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,077 (281) 9.796
Balance as at 31 March 2024 41,149 - (26,030) {607) 14.512
Balance as at 1 April 2024 41,149 - (26,030) {607) 14,512
Profit for the year - - 11,070 - 11,070

|Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) - = - (16) a6
Total comprehensive incame for the vear 11,070 {16) 11.054
Balance as at 31 March 2025 41.149 - {14,959) (623) 25.567
Material accounting policies 3




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Standalone statement of cash flow
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

For the period ended

31 March 2025

For the vear ended
ch 2024

Profit before tax 14,462 13,607
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 8,684 8243
Interest income (189) (2935)
Interest income on sublease (817) (692)
Deferred rental income and rent equalisation (268) (181)
Termination gain on leases (76) (388)
Gain on sale of investment (net) (112) (53)
Finance cost 9,492 8,110
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (96) (100)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (112) -
Property, plant and equipment wrtitten off 5 24
Intangible assets wrtitten off - 3
Impaimment of investment and loan 5,101 -
Employee share based payment - 18
Operating profit before working capital changes 36,074 28,296
Change in operating assets and liabilities

Increase in inventories (70,545) (14,860)
Decrease in trade receivables 176 1,338
Increase in loans receivable, other financial asset and other assets (7,544) (6,285)
Increase in other financial liabilities 1,229 742
Increase in provisions 167 350
Increase in gold on loan and trade payable 36,885 25,936
Increase in other liabilities 10,745 3.223
Cash genereated from operating activities before taxes 7.187 38,740
Income taxes paid (Net of refunds) (3,895) (302)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A) 3,292 37,938
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and intangible assets (2,934) 6,502)
under development

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 592 1,017
Loan given during the year to subsidiary - (2,863)
Sale of mutual fund investments, net 112 53
Deposits placed during the year (333) (326)
Interest received 47 1,168
Lease payments received from sub-leases 2,107 1.649
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (409) {5.804)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal payment of lease liabilities (4,675) {4,936)
Interest payment of lease liabilities (2,929) {2.998)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 6,996 17,317
Repayment of long term borrowings 4,475) (1,024)
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) short term borrowings, net 9,360 (13,778)
Finance costs paid (6,277) (5.028)
Share based payments (697) (20.083)
Proceed from issue of equity shares - 1
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (2,697) (30,529
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 186 1,605
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the vear (Refer note 11(ii)) 2,111 506
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 11(ii)) 2,297 2,111




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Standalone statement of cash flow
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the period ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with Ind AS 7
Borrowings

Opening balance 59,226 56,711
Repayment of borrowings (236,963) (577,801}
Proceeds from borrowings 248,846 580316
Closing balance 71,109 59,226
Bank overdrafis repayable on demand and used for cash nent purposes 1,937 -
Closing balance in the balance sheet 73,046 59,226
Reconciliation of Lease liability

Opening balance 35,248 26,342
Payments made during the year (7,604) (7,934)
Non-cash changes 10,786 16,840
Closing balance 38,430 35,248
Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 4,234 2,111
Bank overdrafts repayable on demand and used for cash management purposes (1,937) -
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 2,297 2,111

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accouniants
Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

K.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U52393TN2007PTC064830)

s

I\

O

Alhok Kumar Sonthalia
Direchar

DIN: 03259683

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025

Snumeyﬁﬁi}

Managing Director
DIN: 10674640
Place: Mumbai
Date: 07 May 2025

Arjun esh

Partner

Membership No, 218495
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025

\J, A
Kalyanibhai Rhonac
Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025

Manoj Bhanawat
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Material accounting policies and notes to the standalone financial statements

I BACKGROUND
CaratLane Trading Private Limiled (the Company) is domiciled and incorporated in India under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and its commercial papers arc listed on the
BSE The Company is engaged in actis itics of Manufacluring and trading of jewellery. The regisicred office address of the Company is 727, Anna Salai, Pathari Road Thousand Lights,
Chennai TN 600006

The Board of Directors approed the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 and authorised or issuc on 07 May 2025

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

(i) Statement of campliance

The standalone financial stalements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') nolified under the Companics (Indian Accounling Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companics
(Indian A ing Standards) A d Rules, 2016 rcad with Section 133 of the Companies Acl, 2013 (‘the Act') and other relevant provision of the acl under going concem
asssumplion using the historical cost comention on an accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which arc measured at fair values notified under the Act & Rules prescribed
thereunder. (together hercinafler referred to as *Standalone Financial Stalements” or *financial statements”)

(ii) Basis of measurement

The dalonc financial have been prepared on an accrual basis under Lhe historical cost convention except for the following ilems:
a. Certain financial assels and liabilitics (including derivalive instruments) that are measured al fair valuc

b, Share bascd payments that are measured al fair value

¢. The defincd benelit assel/liability that are measured al fair valuc of present value of defined benefit obligations

d. Right of usc asscls and Icase liabilitics arc measurcd at fair markel valuc as per INDAS 116

Historical cost is generally based on the fair valuc of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is Lhe price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a hability in an orderly Lransaction betwecn market participants al the measurement dale

(iii) Use of esti jons and jud

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Tnd AS requires to make jud i and assumptions that affecl the application of’
accounting policics on the reported amount of asscts and liabilitics, revenues and expenscs and disclosure of conlingent liabilities. Such estimates. assumptions and judgement are based
on management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual result may differ from these estimates

Estimates and assumplions arc reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions (o accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the period in which the esstimates arc revised and in- any
fulure periods affecled

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policics that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements is included in
the following notes:

- Note 30 ~ Leases — whether an arrangement contains a lease

- Nolc 30 — Leasc classification (including the expecled general inflation rates) and leasc lerm

- Note 21 - Revenue Recognition

-Note 5(iv)- Intangible asscts under development

-Note 31(d) - Long term incentive and Tilan Employec Stock Option Plan

Assumptions and estimation

Information aboul assumplions and estimation uncertaintics that have significant risk of resulting in a matcrial adjustment in the ycar cnding 31 March 2024 is included in the following
notes:

- Note 5 (i) — Uscful lifc of the Property, plant and equipment:

- Nole 5 (i} — Uselul life of the Intangible asscts;

- Note 35 — Contingent liabilitics and commitments:

- Notes 31 — Mcasurement of defined benefit obligations: key acluarial assumptions:

- Note 30 - Leases - Lease term and incremental borrowing rate

- Nole 36 - Fair value mcasurement of [inancial instruments

- Note 21 - Revenue recognition

- Note 20 {a) - Provision for warranty

- Note 33 - Contracl assct and liability

-Nole 11- Expected credit loss

-Notc 8- Deferred tax- recognition and valuation

- Note 19 - Provision for Xclusive points

-Notc 31 (d) - Long term incentive and Titan Employce Stock Option Plan

(iv) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the standalone financial statcments of the Company arc measured using the currency of the primary cconomic environmenl in which the Company operales (ic the
“funclional currency ™). The dalone financial are p: d in Indian Rupee ("INR" or "INR"), which is the Company's functional and presenlation currcncy and is rounded
off to the nearest lakhs except when otherwise indicated

(v) Measurement of fair values

Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company requirc the measurement of fair values. for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilitics.

The Company has an cstablished conlrol framework with respecl to the measurement of fair values and the valuation leam regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjusiments

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation Lechniques as follows:

- Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for ideatical assets or liabilities

- Level 2; inpuls other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that arc observable for the asset or liability, either dircctly (i.c. as prices) or indircclly (i.e. derived [rom prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability thal are nol based on observable markel data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an assct or a liability, the Company uscs obscrvable market data as far as possiblc.
If the inputs uscd to measure the fair value of an asscl or a liability fall inlo a dilferent levels of the fair value hicrarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised n its enlirely in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the loweslt level inpul that is signili Lo the entirc

Further information about the assumptions made in the measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

- Note 36 - financial instrumenls

(vi) Current and Non Current classification

Bascd on the time involved between the acquisition of asscts for pi ing and Lheir realizalion in cash and cash equivalents. the Company has identificd twelve months as its operating
cycle for determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilitics in the Balance sheel Balances that are ralisabe/ payable within a period 12 months are considered as
currenl and beyond |2 months is considered as non-current




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Material accounting policies and notes to the standalone financial statements

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Accounting policics set oul below have been applicd consistently to all periods p d in these Slandalone Financial S unless otherwisc indicated. This nole provides list
of material accounting policics adopted in the preparation of the standalone financial stalements. These financial statements are the seperatc financial statements of the Company.

(i} Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized upon Lransfer of control of promised goods or services Lo customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects (o reccive in exchange for
those goods or services.

Sale of products :
Revenuc from the sale of producls is recognised at the point in lime when control is transferred to the cuslomer.

Revenuc is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of customer incentives, discounts, variable considerations, payments made Lo customers, other similar
charges, as specified in the contracl with the Additionally. revenue excludes laxes collected from . which arc sub ly remitled Lo governmental authorities,

Invoices are usually payable within 120-180 days, cxcept for cash and carry busincss

For contracts Lhat permit the customer o relurn an ilem, revenuc is recognized Lo the extent thal is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized will nol oceur,

Therefore, the amount of rexvenuc recognized is adjusted for expected returns, which are cstimated based on the historical data. In Lthese circumstances, a refund liability and a right to
recover retuned goods asscts arc recognized. The right Lo recover retumed goods asset is measured afler reducing the average gross margin from the estimated refund liability. The
refund liability is included in other current liability (note 19) and right to recover relumed goods is included in other current assets (note 12) The Company reviews its estimale of
expected relumns al cach reporting date and updates the amounts of the assets and liability accordingly.

Advances received for services are reported as liabilities until all conditions for revenue recognition are met.

The Company allocates a portion of the consideration received Lo “Xclusive points” This allocation of the matcrial right to the cuslomer is based on the historical data for redemption of

these Xclusive points. The amount allocated to the xelsuive points is deferred and is recognized as revenue when xelusive paints are red d or the likelihood of the !

the xclusive points become remote. The deferred revenue is shown as liability for exclusive points under other current liabilitics

Use of signi jud in reycnue r

+ The Company’s conlracls with customers could includc promises Lo transfer multiple goods Lo a customer. The Company assesscs the goods promised in a contract and identifics
distinct performance obligations in the contract [dentification of distinct performance obligation involves jud 1o d inc the deliverables and the ability of the customer Lo

bene(it independently from such deliverabics

» Judgement s also required to determine the transaction price for the contract The transaction price could be cither a fixed amount of ion or variable
with clements such as volume discounts, performance bonuses, price concessions and incenlives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the
contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable Lo the customer is adjusted Lo the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct good [rom the
customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the Lransaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable thal a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulalive revenuc recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end ol cach reporting period

= The Company uscs judgement to determine an appropriate standalone sclling price for a performance obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price Lo each performance

obligation on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of cach distinct good or service promised in the contract. Where standalone selling price is nol observable, the Company
uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to cach distinct performance obligation

Sale of services :
Service income is recognised on rendering of services based on the agreements/arrangements with the concerned partics
Refer Nole - 21 Revenue from operations

Interest income is recognized as il accrues in the standalone statement of profit and loss using cffective interest rale method
Commission income is gencrally recognized when the related salc is executed as per Lhe terms of the agreement

The Company has determined that the revenucs as disclosed in Note 21 are disaggregated into categorics that depict how the nature, amount. timing and uncertainty of revenuc and cash
flows arc affected by cconomic factors

i (a) Other income
Franchisee Signing Fees :Franchi ignining fces is ised based on Lhe franchisce stores opened during Lhe year which varics based on Lhe location. It excludes taxes remilied Lo
the govermenl which are receovered from the Franchisee's. (Nolc 22)

(i) Property, plant and equipment
The cost of any item of PPE shall be recognised as an assel il an only if it is probable that future cconomic benefit associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably,

{ depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. il any

Items of Property, plant and cquij are d aL cost less

The cost of an item of property. plant and equipment comprises ils purchase price/ acquisition cost, net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import dutics and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recovcrable from Lhe Lax authoritics), any dircetly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenscs and interest on
borrowings alLributablc to acquisition of qualifving property. plant and equipment up to the date the assct is ready for its intended usc

Subscquent expenditure on property, plant and cquipment afler its purchasc / completion is capilalized only if such expenditure results in an inerease in the future bencfits from such
asset beyond its previously asscssed standard of performance.

Advance paid towards acquisition of fixed assets outslanding at cach balance sheel dalc is disclosed as capital advances under non-current asscls

Any gain or loss on disposat of an item of property, plant and equipmen is recognized in the standalonc statement of profit or loss. Capilal work-in-progress compriscs Lhe cost of asscts

that are nol ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date.

When significant parts of plant and cquipment are required Lo be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them scparately based on their specific useful lives. Repairs and
costs arc iscd in the of profit and loss as incurred

The Company identifics and determincs cost of each component/ part of property, plant and P ly, i the p / part has a cost which is significant (o the Lotal cost
of the property, plant and cquipment and has uscful life that is materially different from that of the remaining assel Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful life
of the asset or the leasc period whichever is less

An ilem of property, plant and cqui and any part initially r is d ised upon disposal or when no future economic bencfits are expected from ils usc or
disposal. Gains or losses arising rom de-recognition of Property, plant and cqui and 1 ible asscls arc d as the difference between the nel disposal proceeds and Lhe
carrying amount of Property, plant and cquipment and are recognized in Lhe standalone slatement of profit and loss when the Property. plant and equipment is derecognized
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(ii) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation methods, estimated useful life and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using straight-line method to allocate their cost over Lhe uselul lives of assets which is as follows:

Furnilure and Hitings
Compuler equipment
Computer scrver
Office cquipments

Jewellery Machince 15 years
Vehicles 3 years 8 years
Mock jewellery 1 vear I vear
Leaschold improvements - Stores 4 years or 1“?: ll:; ';rSIOd whichever Lease period
Leaschold improvements - Other than storcs 8 years or lcnsi: lr;csl:‘)d . Lease period

Depreciation for asscts purchased / sold during the period is proportionally charged
The residual vnlucs useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and cquipment are reviewed al cach financial ycar end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Based
on technical and q advice, the bcllcvcs that its cstimates of uscful lives as given above best rcprcscnl the period over which management expecls (o use
these asscts. Changes in the expecled uselul life or the expected patiern of ption of fulure ic benefits cmbodicd in the assct arc considered Lo modify the amortization
period or method, as appropriatc, and arc trealed as changes in accounting cstimales

(iii) Intangible assets
(a) Internally generated : Research and development

Expendilure on rescarch activi lucs is rccogm/cd in the stalentent of profit and loss as incurred

Devet di is capitalized as part of the cost of the resulting inlangible assct only if the cxpendllurc can be measured reliably, the producl or process is technically and
commercially l'cimblc future cconomic benefits arc probable, and the Company intends 1o and has suffi Lo complete devel and 1o usc or sell the asscl. Otherwisc, it
is recognized in profil or loss as incurred, Subseq; Lo initial ition, the asset is d at cost less lated amortization and any accumulated impairment losscs

(b) Amortization

Amortization is calculated to wrile off the cost of intangible assets Iess Lheir estimated residual values over their estimated uscful lives using the straight- line method, and is included in
depreciation and amortization in Statement of Profit and Loss

The estimated uscful lives are as follows:

Asset Liseful li
Computer sollwane 3 years

Carqilane porial 3 veprs
Amortization method. useful lives and residual values arc reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, il appropriate,

(iv) Impairment

(a) Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for Lhe financial assets which arc not fair valued through the statement of profit and loss. Expected
credit loss is the difference belween the contractual cash flows and the cash flows that the enlity expects o receive, discounted using the effective interest rate. Loss allowance for trade
receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assels, expecled credil losses arc measured at an amount cqual to the 12-month ECL. unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case thosc are measured at lifetime ECL. as required. The amount of expeeted credit losses (or reversal) thal is
required Lo adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date Lo the amount that is required Lo be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss

When determining whether the credit risk of a (inancial assel has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers rcasonable and
supportablc information Lhat is relevant and available without undue cosl or efTort. This includes both quantitative and qualitalive information and analysis. based on the Company’s
historical expericnce and informed credit assessmen that includes forward-looking information

The Comparny considers a financial assct to be in default when:

=the deblor is unlikely 1o pay its credit obligations to the Company in full. without recourse by the Company (o aclions such as realizing security (if any is held): or
sthe financial asset is more than 90 days past duc

Al cach reporting date. the Company assesscs whether financial asscLs carried al amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credil-impaired” when onc or more cvents that
have a detrimental price on the estimated fulure cash flows of the financial assets have occurred

Evidence that a financial asset is credil-impaired includes the following obscrvable data:

i significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

ii.a breach of contract such as default or being more than 90 days pasl duc:

iii it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganistaion; or
iv.the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difMicultics

(b) Non-financial assets
ible assets, [ asset under d and property, plant and equipment

Al cach reporting date, the Company reviews Lhe carrying amount of its Non financial assets Lo determine whether there is any indication of i
under development and property, plant and cquipment arc cvaluated for recoverability whencver cvents or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. For the purpose of impaimicnt Lesting, Lhe recoverable amount (i.c. the higher of the fair value less cost to scll and the valuc-in -usc) is determined on an individual assct
basis unless the asset does not gencrale cash flows that are largely independent of those from other asscls, Value in usc is based on estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate Lhat reflects current market assessments of Lhe time value of moncy and the risks specific Lo the asset or CGU. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which Lhe assel belongs. If such asscts arc considered Lo be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is
mcasured by the amount by which the carrying value of the asscls cxceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and
loss if there has been a change in the cstimates used to determine the recov erable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that
Lhis amount docs not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for Lhe
asscl in prior ycars

P 1

1 ible assels,] iblc asscl
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(v} Leases

Company as a lessee

A contract is, or conlains, a lcasc il the contract com ¢ys the right to control the use of an identified asscL for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right 1o control the use of an identificd assct, the Company assesscs whether:

a. the contract involves Lhe usc of an identificd asset:

b. the Company has the right (o obtain substantially all the cconomic benefils from usc of the asset Lhroughoul the period of use: and

¢. the Company has the right to dircct the use of the assct

Al inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in the conlract to cach lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone prices of the lcasc comp and the tand-alone price of the | p

The Company iscs right-of- asscl rep ing its right 1o usc the underlying asset for the lcasc term at the lease commencement date. The cost of Lhe right-of-usc assel
mcasurcd al inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the leasc liability, adjusted for any Icase payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lcase incentivcs received, plus any initial dircet costs incurred and an estimate of the costs Lo be incurred by the lessec in dismantling and removing the underlying assct or restoring the
underlying assel or site on which it is located

The right-of-use asscl is sub Iy d at cosl less lated d ati lated impai losscs, il any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-usc asscls is deprecialed using the straight-line method (rom the commencement date over Lhe shorter of leasc term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The eslimated usclul
lives of right-of-usc asscts are determined on Lhe same basis as those of property, plant and cquipment Right-of-use assets arc Lested for impairment whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable, Impairment loss, if any. is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Modification/termination of lease: The lcasc liability is measured at amortised cost using the effeclive inlerest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or ratc. if therc is a change in the estimalc of the amount expected Lo be pavable under a residual valuc guarantee. if the Company changes ils
assessment of whether iL will exercise a purchase. extension or termination option or il there is a revised in-substance fixed Ieasc payment. A corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assct, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the righl-of-use assct has becn reduced Lo zero.

Variable payments: Variablc leasc payments that depend on salcs are recognised in the Statement of profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers thosc payments
oceurs

The lease liability is initially measured at the present valuc of Lhe lease payments that are nol paid at the commencement dale, discounted using Lhe interest rate implicit in the lease or, i€
thal rate cannol be readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate applicable to the entity within the Company. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rale as the
discount ratc. For lcascs wilh rcasonably similar characteristics, the Company. on a lease by lcase basis, may adopl cither the incremental borrowing rate specific Lo Lhe leasc or the
incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. Incremental borrowing rale used for discounting has been delermined by taking the interest rates obtained from financial
instilutions for borrowing Lhe similar valuc of right of usc assets for similar tenure. The rates will be reassessed on a yearly basis at the beginning of cach accounting period 1o reficct
changes in financial conditions. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable Icasc payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchasc option where the
Company is rcasonably cerain (o excrcise that oplion and payments of penaltics for terminaling the lease, if Lhe lease term reflects the lessee cxcrcising an option Lo lerminate the lease
The Company has clected nol Lo recognisc righl-of-usc asscts and leasc liabilities for short-term leascs of all asscls that have a leasc term of 12 months or less and leascs of low-value
assels. The Company recognizes the leasc payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease lerm

Company as a Lessor: In casc of sub-leasing. where the Company. being the original lessce and intermediate lossor, grants a right Lo use Lhe underlying assct (o a third party, the head
lease is recognised as Icasc liabilily and sub-lcasc is recognised as leasc reccivables in the Balance Sheel of the Company. Interest cxpense is charged on the lease liability and interest
income is recognised on lease receivables in the stalement of profit or loss

(vi) Non-current assets or disposal group held for sale :

Non-current asscts, or disposal groups comprising asscts and liabilitics, arc classificd as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than
through continuing usc.

Such asscls, or disposal groups. arc generally measured at the lower of their carrying value and fair value less cosls to scll

Once classificd as held for sale, inlangible asscls, property, plant and cquipment, investment properties are no longer amortised or depreciated

Non-current asscls classificd as held-for-sale and the assets of a disposal group classificd as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in balance sheel. The liabilities of
a disposal group classificd as held for sale are prescnted scparalely from other liabilitics in the balance sheet

{vii) Inventories

Inventorics |other than quantities of gold for which the price is yet (o be determined with the supplicrs (Unfixed Gold)| are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The
cost is determined as follows:

(i) Raw malerials arc valued al weighied average except solitaires which are valued at the cost of purchase

(ii) Work-in-progress and finished goods (other than gold) are valued at weighted average cost of production

(iii) Traded goods arc valued al weighted average / cost of purchase

(iv) Gold is valucd on first-in-first-out basis

(v} Gold hedeed throuph gold on loan and futures contract are revalued at fair value

Cost comprises all costs of purchasc including dulics and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the Company). freight inwards and other expenditure direclly altributable to
acquisition. Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overhcads

Unlixed gold is initially valued at the provisional gold price prevailing on the dale of receipl of gold and revalued at the gold price prevailing at the end of each reporting period

Net realizable value rep the csti d sclling price for inventories less estimated cost of completion and costs neeessary Lo make the salc

(viii) Foreign currency transactions and balances
Foreign exchange transactions are recorded al the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the respeclitc transaclions. Exchange differcnces arising on foreign exchange transactions
settled during the year are ized in the dal of profit and loss for the ycar

Monctary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencics as at Lhe standalone balance sheet date arc translated al the exchange rates on that date. The resullant exchange
differences are recognized in the standalone stalement of profit and loss

Iated

Non-monctary asscls and liabilitics which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency are at an exch rate thal approxi the rates prevalent

on the date of the transaction
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(ix) Taxation

Income tax expense compriscs current tax expense and Lhe net change in Lhe deferred tax asset or liabilily during the year. Current and deferred tax arc ized in

of profit and loss. excepl when they refale (o items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or dircetly in equity, in which case, Lhe current and deferred Lax are also recognized
in other comprehensiv e income or dircelly in equily, respectively,

a) Current income tax: Currenl income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected (o be recovered from or paid 1o the taxation authoritics based on the
taxable income for that year. The Lax rates and tax laws used Lo computc Lhe amount are those thal are enacted or substantively enacted by Lhe balance sheet date. The Company offscts
current tax assets and current tax liabiluics. where it has a legally enforccable right to scl off the recognized amounts and where it intends cither Lo setllc on a nct basis. or (o realize the
assct and scutle the liability simultancously:.

b) Deferred income tax: Deferred income Lax asscls and liabilitics are recognized using the balance sheel approach. Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of asscts and liabililies and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposcs, except when the deferred income Lax arises [rom the initial
recognition of goodwill or an assct or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affcels neither accounling nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction
The carrying amount of deferred income Lax assels is reviewed al cach balance sheel dale and reduced Lo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available 1o allow all or part of the delerred income tax asset Lo be utilized

Deferred income Lax asscts arc recognized for all deductible temporary differences. to the exlenl that it is probable that laxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized Deferred income Lax assets are recognized for carmy forward of unused Lax credits and unused (ax losses. to the extent thal there is convincing
cvidence that Laxable profit will be available against which the carry forward of unused tax credils and unused tax losses can be utilized

Deferred income tax liabilities arc recognised for all laxable temporary differences except in respeet of axable lemporary: differences iated with iny in subsidiarics,
associates and joint ventures where the Lliming of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable Lhat the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foresceable future

Deferred income Lax asscts and liabilitics are measured using Lax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively cnacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those Llemporary differences are expecied 1o be recovered or seitled. The cffect of changes in lax rales on deferred income Lax assets and liabilitics is

recognized as an income or expense in the period that includes the or ive date

Unrecognized deferred Lax asscls are reassessed al cach reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred lax assct
Lo be recovered

The measurcment of deferred Lax refects the tax consequences that will follow from the manner in which the company expects, al the reporting dale Lo recover or selile Lhe carrying

amount of its assets and liabilitics
Deferred lax assets and deferred tax liabilitics arc offset if a legally enforceabic right exists to sel off current tax assels against current tax liabilitics and the deferred Laxes relate Lo the

same tax authority
{xi) Employee benefits
i) Short term employee benefits

All employce benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classificd as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salarics, shori-term compensaled absences
and incentives clc.. are ized in the dal; of profit and loss for the year in which the cmployce renders the related serviee

ii) Defined contribution plan

All cligible employces receive benefit from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employce and the Company make monthly contribution to the fund, which is
cqual Lo a specified percentage of the covered employee's basic salary and including other fixed component not linked to the performance of employees. The Company' has no further
obligations under this plan beyond its monthly contributions

Post employment benefits

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering all cligible employees. The present valuc of obligation under such defined bencfit plan is determined based on
acluarial valuation carried al the year-cnd using the Projected Unit Credit Mcthod, which recognizes each period of service as giving risc Lo addilional unit of employee benefit
cntitlement and measures cach unit scparately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at (he present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used
for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans. is based on the market yields on Government sceurilics as at the balance sheet date having maturity
periods approximating the term of Lhe related obligation. The Company recognizes the net obligalion of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losscs
through re-measurcments of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) are rccognized in other comprehensive income. In d with Ind AS, re-measurcment gains and losses on
defined benefit plans recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified Lo slandalone stalement of profit and loss. As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule 111, the Company
transfers it immediately Lo retained carnings

The plan provides a lump-sum payment to cligible cmployees at retirement or on termination of cmployment based on the salary of the respective employee and the years of employment
with the Company. The pratuity liability is accrued based on an actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date, carried oul by an independent actuary

iv) Compensated absences
Compensated abscnces which are not expected 1o occur within twelve months afler the end of the period in which the employce renders the related services are recognized as an
actuarially determined liability at the present value of Lhe defined benefit obligation al the balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method.

(xii) Employee stock option expense

The Company measurcs compensalion cost relating to sharc-based payments using the [air valuation method in accordance with Ind AS 102. Share-Based Payment. Compensalion
cxpense is amortized over the vesting period of the option on a straighl-line basis over the requisite service period for cach scparately vesting portion of Lhe award as if the award was in-
substance, multiple awards

The cost of cquity-scltled Lransactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model The expected Lerm of an option is
estlimaled bascd on the vesting term and contractual life of the option. Expecled volatility during the expecled term of Lhe oplion is based on the historical volatility of similar companics
Risk free intercst rales are based on the government sceuritics yicld in effect at the time of the grant

The cost of cquily scttled Lransactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in share options outstanding account in cquity, over Lhe period in which Lhe performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transaclions al each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesling period has cxpired and the companys best cstimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The income statement expense or credil for a period represents
the moyement in lative expensce izcd as at the beginning and end of Lhat period and is recognized in employee benefils expense. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share

On 13 December 2023, the Board of Directors had approved the conversion of e exisitng ESOP plan to cash settled plan and approved cash seltlement of oulstanding Vested and
unexcrcised Options to all eligible cmployees/ ex- employecs on surrender of the said Vested and uncxercised Options. The difference between the fair value of options as on grant date
and fair valuc of oplions as on dalc of conversion is debiled (o ‘other equily’

The [air valuc of the amount payable to cmployees in respect of options which arc scitled in cash. is recognized as an employee bencefits expense with a corresponding liabilitics, over the
period during which the employees become uncondilionally entitled to payment. The liability is measured al cach reporting dale and at seitlement date based on the fair valuc of oplions
Any change in the liability arc recognized in profit or loss.
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{xiii) Financial instruments
R ition of fi ial assets and fi inl liabilities:
Financial asscts and financial liabilitics arc recognized when the Company becomes a party (o the contractual prosisions of the instruments

Financial asscls and liabilitics arc initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atiributable to financial asscls and liabilitics [other Lhan financial assets and
liabilitics measured al fair valuc Lthrough profit and loss (FVTPLY)] arc added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial asscls or liabilitics, as appropriate on initial recognition
Transaction cosls dircctly attribulable Lo acquisition of financial assels or liabililics measured at FVTPL arc ized i diatcly in the of profit and loss

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured int Lheir entirety at cither amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of financial assels

A) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets:

On initial recognition. a financial asscl is classificd at

(i) Amortized cost

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

(uii) Fair valuc through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial asscls arc not reclassified subsequent Lo their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assels

(1) Fiancial assets carried at amortized cost
A [linancial asset is sub Iy d aL ized cost il it is held within a business model whosc objective is o hold the asset in order Lo collect conlractual cash flows and the
contractual lerms of the financial asset give rise on specificd dales to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income

A flinancial asset is subscquently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a busincss model whose objective is achicved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and sclling financial assels and the contractual lerms of Lhe financial assel give risc on specificd dates Lo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
A financial assct which is nol classificd in any of the abox ¢ calegorics are subscquently fair valued through profit or loss

B) Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement and derecognition:

Financial liabiliies carried at amortized cost

Financial liabilitics arc subscquenly carricd at amortized cost using Lhe cllective interest method. For Lrade and other payables maturing within onc year from the balance sheel date, the
carrying amounls approximale fair valuc due Lo the short maurily of these instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

A financial liabilitics which is not classificd in any of the above calcgories are subsequently carried at fair valuc through profit or loss

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights Lo the cash flows from the financial assel expire, or it transfers the right Lo receive the contractual cash flows ina
transaclion in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asscls arc transferred or in which the Company ncither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial assct

I the Company cniers into transactions whercby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, bul retains cither all or substantially all of Lhe risks and rewards of the transferred
assels, the transferred assets are nol derecognized

Financial liabihnies

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derccognizes a [inancial liability when its (crms
are modificd and the cash flows under the modilied terms arc substantially different. In Lhis casc, a new financial liability based on the modificd terms is recognized at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and a new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in the standalone statement of profil and loss

Offsetting
Financial asscts and financial liabilitics arc offsct and the nel amount presented in the standalone balance sheel when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforccable
right to sel off the amounts and il intends cither Lo scttle them on a nel basis or realizc the asset and scitle the liability simultancously.

(xiv) Derivative financial instruments

a, Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair valuc of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in statement of profit and loss immediately. together with any changes in Lhe
fair valuc of the hedged assct or liability that arc attributable to the hedged risk. Hedge accounting is discontinucd when the Company revokes the hedge relationship, the hedging
instrument or hedged item expires or is sold. lerminated. or exercised or no longer meels the critcria for hedge accounting

The Company applics fair value hedge for the gold purchased whose price is Lo be fixed in future. Therefore, there will be no impact of the fluctuation in the price of the gold on the
Companys profit for the period The Company has designated Lhe trade payables pertaining Lo gold taken on loan [rom banks (‘unfixed gold) as a fair value hedge to Lhe corresponding
gold inventory purchased on loan

b. Cash flow hedge

The Company uses derivative financial instruments Lo manage risks associated with gold price fluctuations relaling to certain highly probable forecasted transactions. The company has
designated derivative financial instruments Laken for gold price fluctuations as ‘cash flow™ hedges relating Lo highly probable forecasled transactions

The usc of derivative financial instruments is govcmed by the Company’s policics approved by the Board of Direclors, which provide written principles on the use of such instruments
Hedging instruments are initially measured at fair value, and arc re-measured at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair valuc of these derivatives thal arc designated and effective

as hedges of future cash flows arc ised in Other prehensive income and accumulated under the heading cash flow hedge reserve and the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the stalement of profit and loss

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or no longer qualifies for hedge accounling, For forecasted Lransactions, any cumulative gain or loss on Lhe
hedging instrument recognised in hedging reserve is relained until the forecast Lransaction occurs upon which it is ised in the al of profit and loss IT a hedged
Lransaction is no longer expected Lo occur, Lhe net 1 gain or loss lated in hedging reserve is ised i diatcly (o the of profit and loss

The Company has designated derivative financial instruments Laken for gold price fluctuations as “cash flow” hedges relating Lo highly probable forccasted transactions




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Material accounting policies and notes to the standalone financial statements

(xv) Provisions and contingent liabilities

a General

Provisions arc recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructivc) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an oulflow of resources cmbodying economic
benefits will be required Lo sctile the obligation and a reliable cstimale can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company cxpects some or all of a provision (o be
reimbursed. the expense relaling Lo a provision is p d in the dal of profit and loss nel of any reimbursement. If the effect of the lime value of money is material,
provisions arc discounted using a current pre-lax rate thal reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific Lo Lhe liability. When discounting is used, Lhe increase in the provision due o the
passage of ime is recognized as a [inance cost

Product warranly costs are detcrmined based on pasl expericnce and provided for in the ycar of sale

b. Contingent habilities

A disclosure for contingent liabilitics is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not requirc an outflow of resources. When there is a possible
or a present obligation where the likclihood of outflow of resources is remole, no provision or disclosure is made

¢. Onerous contracits

Provision for oncrous contracls i .¢, contracts where the expecled unay oidable cosl of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed Lhe economic benefits expected Lo be received
under i, are recognized when it is probable that an outllow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to selde a present obligation as a result of an obligating cvent
based on a reliable estimate of such obligation

(xvi) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents comprisc of cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and balances with banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original
maturily at the datc of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash Lo be cash cquivalents

(xvii) Standal cash flow
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net loss before tax is adjusted for the elfeets of transactions of a non-cash nalure, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operaling cash receipls or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and [i ing activitics

of the Company arc scgregated

(xviii) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs are intcrest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds. The borrowing cost includes intercst expensc accrued on gold on loan taken [rom banks
Borrowing costs atLributable Lo acquisition or construction of an assct which nceessarily take a substantial period of lime Lo get ready for their intended usc arc capitalized as part of the
cosl ol assel. Other borrowing cosls arc recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

(xix) Earning per share

Basic carning per share is computed by dividing the net profil afier Lax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the ycar. Diluled loss per share is computed
by dividing the nel profit after Lax by Lhe weighted average number of equity shares considered for derising basic loss per share and also the weighled average number of equity shares
thal could have been issucd upon conversion of all dilutive polential cquity sharcs. Diluted carnings per sharc is computed using the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive
cquivalent shares outslanding during the year, using the treasury stock method for options, exccpt where the results would be anti-dilutive. The diluted potential equity shares arc adjusted
for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued al fair value (i.c. the average market value of the outstanding shares). Diluive potential cquity sharcs are deemed
converted as of the beginning of the period. unless issued at a later date

(xx) Segment Reporting

Operating segments arc reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chicf Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM'). The Board of Dircclors of the Company
assesses Lhe financial performance and position of the Company. The Managing Director and Chicf exceutive officer has been identificd as the CODM

The Company operates in onc scgmenl only ie. Jewellery. The CODM cvaluates the Company's performance based on the revenue and operaling income [rom the sale of Jewellery

Accordingly, no additional segment discl has been made for the business segment
In terms of geographical segment, since the Company operales only in India. there is only one geographical segment, ic. India. A Jingly, no additional discl has been made for
geographical segment information

4 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendmens Lo the existing dards under Companics (Indian A ing Standards) Rules as issued from Lime to

time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notificd any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to Lhe Company.
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5(iii) Capital Work in Progress

(A) Movement of Capital Work in Progress

As at 31 March 2025

Capital Work in Progress * 68 11 79 0
Total 68 | 11 | 79 | 0|

As at 31 March 2024

. As at Capitalisation during
Particulars : Additions ®  Asat 31 March 2024
articulars 1 ,-\||r|l 2023 dditions the year Sa Lre

Capital Work in Progress *
|Total | 0| 192 | 124 | 68 |

* Represents amount less than INR 50,000

1. There are no projects as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 where the project timelines are overdue
2. There are no projects as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 where the cost exceeded the original plan approved by the Board of Director

(B) Ageing of Capital Work in Progress
As at 31 March 2025

Amount in CWIP for a period

Particulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 yeurs 2-3 venrs More than 3 years
(a) Projects in progress 0 - - - 0
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 0 - - - 0

As at 31 March 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period

th iculs

Raxticulary Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(a) Projects in progress 68 - - - 68
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - ] - =
Total 68 = 5 = 68

5(iv) Movement and Ageing of Intangible assets under development:

(A) Movement of Intangible assets under development :

As at 31 March 2025

F Asat 37 Capitalisation during
Particulars Additions L E
the vear

1 Antil 2024 Reversals Asat31 March 2025
April 202

Intangible assets under development 448
Total | 244 | 1,443 | 1,168 | 71 | 448

As at 31 March 2024

Asat ‘apitalisation during
Particulars 32 Additions Capitalisation/dueas Reversals As at 31 March 2024
1 April 2023 the year
244

| 77 | 2,007 | 1,837 | 3] 244

Intangible assets under development
Total

(B) Ageing of Intangible assets under development :
As at 31 March 2025

Amount in Intangible assets under development for i period

o v 0 P e i I
Rt Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than:3 years Hotal
(a) Projects in progress 285 163 - - 448
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - - < =
Total 185 163 - - 448

As at 31 March 2024

SArE Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period
Particulars

Less than 1'year I-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

(&) Projects in progress 244 - - - 244
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - = = - -
Total 244 - < = 244
Notes :

1. As of March 31, 2025, the implementation of the new ERP system has exceeded the originally planned timelines. The project is now anticipated to go live in the financial
year 2025-26.

2. There are no other projects apart from the above mentioned ERP project where the project timelines are overdue as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
3. There are no projects as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 where the cost exceeded the original plan approved by the Board of Director




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Noles to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

6 Right of use assets®

. As Asat
Particulars
31 Marchi 2025 J1 March 2624
As al 01 April 2024 32,658 24,896
Add : Additions 5213 12,396
Less : Modifications / Terminations 2.355 4,634
As at 31 March 2025 35,516 32,658

Accumulated amortisation

As al 01 April 2024 8,047 4.857
Add : Amortisation expense 4.550 4,630
Less : Medifications / Terminalions 1.698 1.440
As at 31 March 2025 10,899 8,047
Net earrying value 24,617 24,611
*Also Refer Nole 30

=

Financial asscts
(i} fvestments

Particulars Asat Asal

31 March'2025 31 March 2024

I equity j

Investment in subsidiary (at cost unless stated otherwisc))
150 shares (Previous year: 150 shares) fully paid cquity shares of § 1,000 cach 109 109
in StudioC Inc,, USA
Less: Provisions for impairment in value of investment ( Refer note 42 ) (109) -

- 109
Aggregale book valuc of unquoted investments (] 109
Apggregare amount of impairment in value of investments (109) -

(ii) Loans receivable

Asal

A) March 2024

Unsecured, ervdit impatred

Loan to SwudioC Inc. {Refer note 29) 4,989 4,861
Less: Provision for Iipairment in value of loan receivable (Refer nole 42) (4,989) -
- 4,861

Note ~The loan receivable from StuidoC Inc was carlicr receivable in 2-3 years from the date of cach disbursement, which have been extended in previous year Lo 5 years from the date of each
disburscment

(i) Other financial assets

Asat A% il

Partreulars
1/ March 202 31 March 2024

Unseeweval, consielercd gomd

Securily deposils 2,158 2,150
Leass recchvables (Refor note 50) 9,381 7.462
Deposits under Licn (Refer note 11iii)) 2 -

Other deposits 39 ki

11.630 4704
i s,




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwisc stated)

8 Incomc tax

a) The following is the analysis of deferred tax asscts/(liabilitics):

Recognised in other Revognised in (he
Particulars S comp 3 statement of profit el
1 April 2024 L hed earning 31 March 2025
income andk losy
Deferred tax assets
Provision for doubLful trade reccivables 4 - [{)] - 3
Property, plant and equipment 239 - 27 313
Employec benefits 503 L 78 587
Fonward contracts - - 1 - 1
Impariment = 1.284 1.284
MSME Paymcnts - 27 27
Lease liabilities (net of Righl-of-usc assets) 511 - 437 - 948
Carrvforward of Losses and unabsorbed depreciation 1,347 - (1.347) - -
Provision for Property. plant and equipment 29 - 2% - -
Provision for warranty 64 - (38) - 26
ESOP Liabilites 503 - (503) - -
Others 92 = (63) - 29
3.292 6 121 - 3_,9]_8-
Reco i g Recognised in the
Particnlars e comprehensive statement of peofit 8 3 RERY
I April 2023 L retained ciming 31/ Mavch 2024
inconie and losy
Deferred tax asscts
Provision for doublful trade receivables 17 - (13) 4
Property, plant and equipment 145 . 94 - 239
Employee benefits 345 1 147 - 303
Lease liabilities (nct of Right-of-usc asscts) 240 - 271 - 511
Carryforward of Losses and unabsorbed depreciation 579 - 764 - 1.347
Provision [or Property, plant and cquipment 29 - - s 29
Provision for warranty 47 - 17 - 64
ESOP Liabilites . . (4,822) 5,325 503
Others - - 92 - 92
1,403 11 34461 5,325 3,392

b) Amounts recognised in siatement of profit and loss

For the For the year ended
31N 31 March 2024

Particulary

Income tax expenscs

Current tax 3.513 -
Deferred tax (i2n 3.530
Income tax included in other comprehensive income on:

- Remeasurement of employee defincd benefit plans ([[1] (95)
Tax expensc for the year 3386 3435

c)  The reconciliation between thie provision of income (ax and amounts computed by applying the Indian statulory income tax rate lo profit before taxes:

cmled

For thie year ended
31 March 2024

FParticulurs

Prafit before lax 13.607
Enacted income tax rate in India 25.11%
Compuled expected tax expense 3.425
Effect of:

EfTect of expenses that are nol deductible in determining taxable profit (129)

Effect of utilisation of carrylorward losses and unabsorbed depreciation against (136) 105
current years profit

Others 17

Income tax expense recopnised in the statement of profit and loss 3,392 3.5:&

d) The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilitics as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

Farticulars S Al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income lax assets (net) 1,399 LoIT
Net current income tax asscts at the end of the year 1,399 l,ﬂl?

For ihe period ended  For the period ended

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Net curreni income 1ax assets at the beginning of the vear 107 213
Income tax paid 4,046 874
Provision created during the year 3,513
Refund received during (he year * 151 72
Net current income tax asscts at the end of the year 1399 1,017

* During the year ended 31 March 2025, refund had been received for Assessement Year 2012-13 and Assessment Year 2023-24 of INR 167 Lakhs including Interest on refund
amounting 1o INR 16 Lakhs

9 Other non-current asscts

Asal Asat
rch 2025 S March 2024

Particulars

Unvecured, comsidered good

Capital advances 77 269
Deferred rental deposit (Refer nole below) 248 196
Prepayments 2 58
Balance with government authoritics 6.075 6.060
6,402 0583
i
Notc :

Deferred rental deposit represents discounted value of security deposil as per
Ind AS 109,




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes ta the standalone financial stalemenis for the year 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10 Taventorics

g Avat Asatl
Particalars
31 Murch 2025 31 Murch 2024

Raw materials 2407 9241
‘Work-in-progress 1,978 1.550
Finished poods 130.726 73.604
Stock-in-trade 17.156 18.365

174,777 102,760

Notes :

(i) The cosl of imyentorics recognised as an cxpensc includes INR 4 lakhs (previous year: INR 11 Iakhs) in respect of write down of inventory (o net-realisable value

{ii) The inventory includes gold purchased on loan from banks amounting to INR 76,696 lakhs (previous year: INR 40,220 lakhs}

(iii) Inventory includes 1.333 kg of Gold out of which 1,330 kg arc hedged through gold loan from bank, future contracts and open orders and 3 kg arc unhedged as at 31
March 2025. Carrying value of the gold pledged as seeurily for loan is INR 76.696 lakhs (Previous ycar : Inventory includes 871 kg of Goid out of which 863 kg are hedged
through gold loan from bank, future contracts and open orders and 8 kg are unhedged as at 31 March 2024, Carrying valuc of the gold pledged as security for loan is INR
(iv) Refer point 3(vii) under material accounting policics for mode of valuation

(v) Remaining value of inventorics arc given as security on pari-passu basis for bank overdralt and cash card. Also refer notes 18(i)

(i) Inventory lying with the job worker amounting Lo INR 16,194 lakhs (Previous year : TNR 3.363 lakhs)

Financial asscts

(i) Trade reccivables

Asat Aot

Eartxiiace 31 March 3025 31 March 2024

Unsecured

Trade receivables. considered good 655 656

Receivables from related parties (Refer note 29) 1,455 1,513

Less: Allowance for doubUul trade receivables - -
2,110 2,169

Trade receivables. credil imparied 24 16

Less: Allowance for doubtful Lrde reccivables Q4) (16}
2,110 2,169

(a) Accing of receivables :

As at 31 March 2025

Particulars & months - 12

Quistanding for fellowing periods from the date of fnveice

Liess than & months I-3yean More than 3 years™ Total
1 year A

(1) Lindi d Trode nables ~ 1 rood 2005 56 4 1 o Lo
(i) Unctbsputed Trade Receivables ~ which have significan increase in eredit - - e - -

tisk

(i) Undispated Trade Receivables — crodit impaired M - - - - el
vl Disparied Trade Reccivablés- considered good - - - - -

(v) Disgaried Trade Reocivables = which luwe significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -

ivi) Dispuited Trade Receivables = credil impaired - - - - -

Total 20K o 9 1 i 214

*Represents amonnis less than INR 50,000

Asat 31 March 2024 ¢

Particulars & moihs - 12
Less than & months = S 2.3 yeurs"
1 yeiar ACAr

Chintstaniling for follow ing periods from the date of i

More than 3 yeary

Tatal

(1) Unds d Trade bles ~ idercd pood Li6d 5 - 0 - 2160

(i) Unddisputed Trade Reccivables - which have significont increase in eredit - - - - -

risk

{inn) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 16 - - - 16

vl Disparied Trade Reccivables- considered good - - - - - -

(v) Disputed Trade Reocivables = which luwe significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
20064 21 = o - L1BS

"Ilcpr:scuu amouanis less than INR 50.000

(b) Movement in the expected credit loss allowance :

Balance at the beginn
Provisian created during the vear 8 It
Bad dcbts wrillen off during, the year - -
Balance at the end of the vear 24 16




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs. nnless othenvise stated)

Financial asscts (continued)

(i) Cash and cash cquivalents

Particulars ey Ei
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Caah on hand 646 458
Balances with banks :

(i) in current accounl 2978 1,629
(il) in EEFC account alo 4
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 4,234 2111
Bank overdrafis repayable on demand and used for cash management purposcs (1,937)

Cash and cash cquivalents in the statemcent of cash flows 2.297 2111

e

Nolte : The balance under current account includes funds in transit primarily for credit card receipts yet o be credited to the Company of INR 615 lakbs (Previous year: INR 495 lakhs)

(iii) Other bank balances

Particulars Gl 1Al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Dreposits placed for Gold hedging 639 3
Deposits under Licn (Refer note below) 198 195
Total 837 S04

Note : Represents fixed deposits placed with banks for duty frec gold purchased for export purpose and deposits placed for dispuled due of indirect taxes

{iv) Loans receivable

Avat Asat

Particalars

31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024
Lnyecured, ennsidered good

Employce loans 94 128
94 128

(v) Other financial assets

Asat As af

Particalars
A1 March 2025 SE Mareh 2024

Unsecured, considered good

Lecasce receivables (Refer note 30) 1.637 1151
Security deposils 606 208
Interest receivable from StudioC (Refer Note 29) - 147
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 26
Other receivable (Refer note (a) below) 1.672
Accrued Income (Refer nole (b) below) 102
Refund receivable from government authorities 1,094
Margin money for gold future contracls 1502

5,902

Note :
(a) Balance pertains (o amount receivable from [ranchisee's lowards day (o day expenditure
(b) Accurcd income represents balance towards bill discounting for vendor invoices and duty drawback reccivable

1

%)

Other current assets

Asvul Asal
31 March 2025 1 Alarch 2024

Particolars

Unseenned, considered gooil

Balance with government authoritics (Refer Note (a) below) 15.556 11.996
Prcpayments 762 785
Right to recover returned goods (Refer note 33) 320 442
Other assels - 2
Advance to supplicrs 2.100 683
18,738 13,908
Note:
(a) Balance wilh government authorilies pertains current and non current GST credits of INR 21.629 lakhs (Previous year: INR 19,150 lakhs) in respect to GST input credil. transitional credit, deemcd credit and refund
receivable

(b) Right to recover retumed goods represents the amount of goods expecled 1o be reccived by the Company on account of sales relurn. Also. refer disclosure made under note
33




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Notes to the dal fi I st for the year 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

13 Share capital

ch 2024

Particulars
Amounl

Authoriscd share capital

Equity share of INR 2 each with voting rights 49,953,234 999 49,953,234 999
Total authorised share capital 49,953,234 999 49,953,234 999
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital

Equity share of INR 2 each with voting nights 33,346,141 667 33,346,141 667
Total issued share capital 33,346,141 667 33,346,141 667

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 2. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to approval by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

(ii) Employee Stock Option Scheme

During the financial year 2017-18, the Company introduced Caratlane Stock Option Plan 2017 (the Plan'). This Plan supersedes the following stock options and stock aption
plans:

a. Executive Management Stock Option Scheme 2009

b. CaratLane Trading India Private Limited Stock Option Scheme for Consultants, 2013

¢, Senior Management Stock Option Scheme, 2012

As per the plan, Board of Directors grants options to the employees of the Company. The vesting period of the option is one to four years from the date of grant. Options
granted under the Scheme can be exercised within a period of six years from the date of vesting. For employees leaving the organization, an option can be exercised within 3
months from the date of resignation

A maximum of 714,017 options are issuable under this plan The movement in options issued are as below:

For (he period ended  Weighted average  Forthe period ended

Particular :
IR 31 March 2025 exereise priee 31 March 2024

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 491,711

Options granted during the year - - - -
Options forfeited during the year - - (27,100) 436
Options converted to cash settled during the year (Refer note below) - - (464,311) 173
Options exercised during the vear - - (300) 474

Ouistanding at the end of the year = -
Options exercisable at the end of the year . = =

Cash settled options

Paciicolacs For the perind ended  Forthe period guded
A 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 52,812 =
Options granted during the year - -
Options forfeited during the year {15,000) -
Options converted to cash settled during the year (Refer note below) - 464,311
Options settled during the vear (16.425) (411,499)
Quistanding at the end of the year 21,387 52,812
Note :

1. During the year ended 31 March 2024, Board on 13 December 2023 had approved the conversion of the exisitng ESOP plan to cash settled plan and approved cashi
settlement of outstanding Vested and unexercised Options to all eligible employees/ ex- employees on surrender of the said Vested and unexercised Options. The Board further|
approved the net cash payout of INR 20,083 Lakhs (adjusted for exercise price amounting to INR 608 Lakhs as applicable to the respective employees/ ex- employees) to be|
paid in lieu of the total 4,11,499 Vested and unexercised Options under the Company's ESOP Plan to the eligible employees/ ex-employees on surrender of the said Vested and
unexercised Options

Net change after adjusting the ESOP reserve with the consideration has been debited to retained earnings under the head of Other equity, amounting to INR 14,481 Lakhs (net
of tax of INR 4,870 Lakhs). For unvested options, net change after adjusting the related ESOP reserve with the fair value on the date of modification of the plan has been
debited to retained earnings under the head of Other equity, amounting to INR 1,349 Lakhs (net of tax of INR 454 Lakhs)

2. As at 31 March 2024, there are 52,812 options outstanding pending settlement, of which 16,200 have vested and 36,612 are unvested, These options have been fair valued at|
INR 5,028 per option amounting to INR 2,076 Lakhs, The impact of fair valuation of cash settled ESOP plan from the date of modification to 31 March 2024 has been debited|
to statement of profit and loss amounting to INR 166 lakhs

3. As at 31 March 2025, there are 21,387 options outstanding pending settlement, of which 16,600 have vested and 4,787 are unvested. These options have been fair valued at
TNR 3,844 per option amounting to INR 723 Lakhs. The impact of fair valuation of cash settled ESOP has been credited to statement of profit and loss amounting to INR 354
lakhs. Further 15,000 options having value of INR 541 lakhs have been forfeited in the current year.
Fair value measurement

The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at each
reporting date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the rigk free interest rate for the term of the option

The fair value of the options is estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model with the following assumptions

31 March 2025 31 March
Fair Value 3,544 5,027
Share Price 3,845 5,028
Risk free rate (%) 6.73% 430%
Adjusted Beta 1.53 0.78
Equity Risk premium 6.52% 5% to 7%
Country risk premium 1.60% 160%
India Inflation 4.00% 4.00%
US Inflation 2.00% 2.00%
Average Cost of Equity 13.26% 12.70%

No. of options 21,387 52,812
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13 Share capital (continued)

(iii) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As a1 31 March 2024
Amonnl
INR In lakhs

As al 31 March 2028
Particulars — Amount
INR In lakhs

Equity shares with voting rights

At the beginning of the year 33,346,141 667 33,345,841 667

Add: Tssue of shares pursuant to options being exercised by emplovees * - - 300 0
year 33.346.141 667 33,346,141 667

* Represents amount less than INR 50,000

iv) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As al 31 March 2025
Particulars No. of shures Yo No. of shares
held held

As at 31 March 2024

Yo

holding

halding

Equity shares with voting rights
‘Titan Company Limited (Refer Notes below} 33.346.141 100.00% 33.343.141 99.99%
Total 33.346.141 100% 33.343.141 100%

(v) Shareholding of promoters

As at 31 March 2025 Asal 31 March 2024

Promoter name | % Change

‘hange
: No, of Shares % of totalb shares - e
during the year during the year

33.346.141 A 33,343,141

No. of Shares % of total sl

Notes :

1. During the year ended 31 March 2025, 3,000 number of shares held by shareholders other than promoters have been transferred to Titan Company Limited. Post this transfer, the company has
become the wholly owned subsidiary of Titan Company Limited

2. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board in its meeting held on 28 November 2023 took on record the transfer of shares held by Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti, the Founder and his family
members, Mr. Siddhartha Padam Sacheti & Mr. Padamchand Sacheti (collectively, the Sellers) for purchase of 91,90,327 equity shares representing 27.56% of the total paid-up equity capital of the
Company on a fully diluted basis to Titan Company Limited

3 Includes shares held by directors jointly with Titan Company Limited and Nominee Directors
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14 Other cquity

Asal
Particulars 31 March 2625
Hevurilaes premiome EIRELY
(Amonnts received on issu of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities
premmm)
Relnined camings (14,959 (26,030)

(Retamed earmmgs comprise of the Companv's prior vears' losses after 1ax)

Other comprehensive ncome 623 (607)
(Represenis actuarial gain or loss on remeasurement of nei defined benefit liahility)

25567 [FEIH)

15 Financial liabilities - Non Current

L Barromings
Asat
Particulars 31 Mardy 2035
Uniecured
Long-term borrowings Term loan (Refer note 1 & 2 below) 19,033 16,512
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (4.887) (3.476)
14,146 13,036
Notes :

| During the year ended 31 March 2025 the Company has taken an additional unscoured loan amounting to INR 6,996 lakhs from HDFC Bank Lid and INR
4,474 lakhs has been repaid. The closing balance as on 31 March 2025 is INR 19,033 lokhs (PY: INR 16,512 lakhs)

2 The interest rate on these term loan ranges between 7 23% to 7 68% per annum (PY: 7.48% Lo 7.98% per annum) and payable over 60 cqual monthly
installments beginning from January 2024

3 During the year ended 31 March 2024 the Company has laken unscoured term loan amounting to INR 17,317 lakhs from HDFC Bunk kd for brand building
activities

4. During the year ended 31 March 2024 an amount of INR 805 Iukhs has been repaid relating Lo the above unsecured loan

il Lease liabilitles

Avat Asat

Partlcalary

31 March 2015 31 March 2004
e hnbalitwes (Refoy note 305 332448 01,7
33,248 30,791

lil. Other financial liabilitics

Asal Asat
,
S 31 Mareh 2035 31 March 2024
Rental depail (5] K0
Cash sellled GSOP liability (Refer note 13) 10 200
513

16  Other non-current linbilitics

Partleulars

31 Miireh 2025
13cfernod renaul hiabulsty 254
3
Note :

Deferred rental liability represents discounted value of secunty deposil as per Ind AS 109

17 Provisions

Adat
35 March 2024
1137
1,157

Partlculars

Provision for gratuity | Refer note 31| - Long Tem

18  Financial liabilities - Current

i. Borrowings

Partliatins Anat vl

S 31 March 2015 31 March 2024
Secured
Bunk overdrall and cash credit (Refer Note | Below) 31,937 35,827
Unsecurcd

Bill discounting (Refur Note 2 Below)
Commercial paper (Refer Note 34)
Current maturities of long lerm borrowings (Refer Note §5()

6,887

347

36,190
Ha

Notes :

1 Sceured against the Company's inventory, receivables and Property, Plant and Equipment on pari-passu basis The interesl rate on Lhe overdrall varies (rom
7.20% 10 9 50% per annum and is payable at monthly intervals. The overdrafl is payable on demund

2 During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Compuny has entered into an with Reccivable Exchange of India limited and with eredit period
ranging between 84 la 179 days and interest rate ranging between 6 80% to 7.35% towards reserse factoring of MSME pay ments

3. The Company has filed slatements as al the quarter end with Lhe banks which are in agreement with the books of accounts as at respeclive quarter ends

iL Gold on loan

Particulars B AR

31 March 2015 J1 March 2024
Secured

Payable (o bunks* 0696 0220
76,696 30,330

*Sceured against inventory and receivables. Includes amounts payable ngainst gold purchnsed from various banks under gold on loan scheme The interest rate
of the gold on lonn vories from 2 25% Lo S 50% per annum as at 31 March 2025 und is payable at monthly intervals The credit period under the aforesuid
urrangement is 180 days from the date of the delivery of gold

ili. Lease liabi

Sl Avnl Annt
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Lease Labilities [refer note 30] - Current 3182 1,457
!5_!!2 4457
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I8  Financial liabllitics - Current (continued)

iv. Trade payables

Avat
March 1024
Trade payables
Outstanding dues of micro and small enterpnises [Refer note (a) below] 4,257 34l
Outstanding dues of credilors other than micro and small enterprises
- Creditors for goods 11,550 14,581
- Credilors for services 10,589 7,838

26396 25,833

(a) Ageing of Trade Payables :

As atl 31 March 2025:

Outslanding for follswing perbods fram due date eof payment
L ihan | ycar

Partlculin

1-1 years 1-) sran More than 3 vears Total

(V) Prispaited dues = Onlies

20,829 2403 [E11] - - 26,396

As at 31 March 2024:

Outstanding for folbowing pediods frem doe date of payment

Partieulars
Not ik Liean than | year 1:2 ears 13 yean More than 3 years
(1 MSME LR - - . 3404
) Cbwers 2088 1435 - - . 419
Qo Tt dhises = MSME - - - -
v} Daputd due = Others = - B .
24,395 1,435 = - - 25833 |

(b) Diselosures required under Scction 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Deselopment Act, 2006:

There are no material dues owed by the Company Lo Micro and Small enterprises, which arc oulstanding for more than 45 days during the year and ns at 31
March 2025, This information as required under the Micro, Small and Meium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been delermined to the extent such
parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company and has been relied upon by the auditors

Asal

Farticulirs
31 March 1025 31 March 2024

() the principal st and the mlenet due Breeeon remamning uapasd 10 any supplier at the end of wch

aornting year,
- Prineipal 4,221 3407
- Imerest 36 7

() e amewt o ineres paidd by the buver in lerms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Dexelopment Agt, 2006 (27 of 2006), along wilh the amount of the payment made to the

supplier bevond the appoinled day during each accounting vear,

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been

paid but beyond the appomnted day during the year) bul withaut adding the interest specified under the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the cnd of cach accounting year: and - -
(¢) the amount of further interest remaining due ond payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 2 s
when the interest dues aboye are actually paid to the small cnlerprise, for Lhe purpose of disallowance of a

deductible ependiture under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act

2006

4,257 3414

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such pacties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the
Management This has been relied upon by the audilors

v. Other financial liabilities

Particulars Avat = As al

31 Macch 2025 31 Blarch 2024
Capital ereditoe 290 e
Interest Payable 467 279
Cash selled ESOP liability (Also Refer Note 13) 713 1¥7

o 30 J

s: 107

Rental deposit - Current 148 -

Payable (owards margin money (Refer note 29) 637 =
Emplos ce payables 1,066 634
3458 2842

19 Other current liabilities

Farticulars pEe AEAE
31 Mairch 2025 31 March T024
Dl rental Seponit (Refer nofs Below ) 4 42
Statutory dues 666 492
Liablity for sales return (Refer nole 33) 444 684
Advance from franchisee 36 36
Advance from customers 18917 8.245
Liability for xclusive points %4 s

551 201

Note :
| Defierred rental deposit represenis discounted value of deposit as per Ind AS 109

20 Provisions

As af
31 March 2024

Particalars

Prondsion for gratairy (Refer ne 31) 199
Provision for compensated absences (Refer nole 31) 586
Provision for warranty phi]

Note a: Provision for warranty
Mietment belim s for aion of ety during the vear

Particulars N

31 Marvh 2025 31 March 2024
155 [
Provisions made during the year 105 340
Ulilsations ®9) (213)
ed dunng the ycar (166} .
n at the end of the year 15 258
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21 Revenue from operations

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Export 4,334 4417
Domestic 393,977 283,794
Sale of products and services 398,311 288,211
Other operating revenue (Refer note below) 16,948 17,604

415,259 305,815
Note :

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company sold gold bullion amounting to INR 16,948 lakhs (previous year INR 17,604 lakhs) to)
various customers dealing in bullion which is disclosed as other operating revenues.

For the vear ended

Eatticulsvs 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contracted price 482,823 350,860
Reduction towards variable consideration 67,564 45,045
Revenue recognised 415,259 305,815

The reduction towards variable consideration comprises of scheme discounts, incentives, etc.

22 Other income

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest on loan (Refer Note 29) 179 285
Corporate expense cross charge (Refer Note 29) 157 356
Franchisee signining fees 383 373
Deferred rental income 219 151
Rent deposit equalization 49 30
Net Gain on termination of leases 76 388
Interest income on sublease (Refer Note 30) 817 692
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 96 100
Net gain on sale of current investments 112 53
Net gain or loss on foreign currency translation 205 115
Rental Income 111 155
Interest on Margin Deposit (refer note 29) 168 103
Export duty drawback 27 126
Miscellaneous income 412 252
3,011 3,179

23 (a) Cost of material consumed

For the vear ended

Rarticulans 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Inventories of Raw materials at the beginning of the year * 9,271
Add: Purchases 355,825 198,071
Less: Inventories of Raw Materials at the end of the year (24.917) (9.271)
340,179 201,345

*For 31 March 2024 Includes stock classified as assets held for sale (Refer note 38)

23 (b) Purchases of stock-in-trade

B For the year ended
Particulars :

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Purchases of traded goods 17,610 24,247

17,610 24,247
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23 (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

For the vear ended

Yo rti o
Bartc:rars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Finished goods

- Closing stock * 130,726 75,047
- Opening stock * 75.047 61,835
(55,679) (13,212)
Work-in-progress
- Closing stock 1,979 1,550
- Opening stock 1,550 1.289
(429) (261)
Stock-in-trade
- Closing stock 17,156 18,365
- Opening stock 18.365 13.703
1,209 (4,662)
Increase in inventory (54.899) (18.135)

* Finished goods as at 31 March 24 includes stock classified as assets held for sale (Refer note 38)

24 Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

facticalas 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus 16,682 14,712
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 31) 388 398
Staff welfare expense 1,849 1,496
Gratuity expenses (refer note 31) 412 259
Employee share based payment expense (Refer Note 13) (656) 148

18,675 17,013

25 Finance cost

For the yvear ended

», - o -
gartciiary 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest on borrowings (Refer note below) 6,208 5,003
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 30.2) 3,027 3,082
Others 257 25

9,492 8.110
Note:

Interest on borrowing includes Interest on Gold on Loan of INR 1,721 Lakhs and Interest on Bank overdraft of INR 4,487 Lakhs for the year
ended 31 March 2025 (Previous year : Interest on Gold on Loan of INR 737 Lakhs and Interest on Bank overdraft of INR 4,266 Lakhs)

26 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

Rl 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 5(i})) 2,361 2,195
Depreciation of right of use asset (Refer Note 6) 4,550 4,630
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 5(ii))} 1,773 1,418

8,684 8,243
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27 Other expenses

27.1

27.2

For the year ended
31 March 2023

¥ 1 f c
Particulurs 31 March 2024

Advertising 18,509 20,633
Agent commission 24,463 19,708
Rent (Refer note 30) 615 457
Freight and forwarding 2,116 2,289
Travelling and conveyance 2,410 918
Professional service charges 3,248 3,425
Bank charges 843 953
Software expenditure 3,053 2,584
Power and fuel 583 602
Communication expenses 174 153
Rates and taxes 219 177
Director sitting fee (refer note 29) 2 60
Repairs and maintenance 1,243 1,180
Payments to auditors (Refer note below) 79 55
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer 27.2 below) 217 148
Property, plant and equipment written off 5 24
Intangible assets written off - 3
Stores and consumables 400 345
Royalty (Refer note 29) 622 456
Miscellaneous expenses 165 394

58,966 54,564
Notes :

(i) Payment to auditors (Excluding taxes)

For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
For statutory audit 49 28

Particulirs

For tax audit 2 2
For limited review 27 24
Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses 1 1

79 55

Corporate Social Responsibility:

(i) Gross amount approved by the board and required to be spent towards corporate social responsibility by the Company during the year:
INR 217 lakhs

(i) Amount spent during the year on:

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1. Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 217 148
2. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 217 148

3, Amount of expenditure incurred on:
-Construction/acquisition of any asset - -

- On purposes other than above 217 76
4. Excess/(Shortfall) at the end of the year - (72)
5. Total of previous years shortfall (60) -

6. Reason for short fall - -
Health, Education, Health, Education, Skill

Skill development, development,
7 Nature of CSR Activities Disaster relief, Wellness Disaster relief, Wellness
and Water, and Water,
Sanitation and Hygiene, Sanitation and Hygiene,
Entrepreneurship Entrepreneurship

(iii) CSR Contribution to Related parties

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Related Parties = -
Unrelated parties 217 76

(iv) Details of Unspent obligations :

For the yvear ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2025

Particulars

Opening Balance -
148

Amount required to be spend during the year

Amount spent during the year from Company’s bank account 76
Amount spent during the year from separate CSR unspent account -
Closing Balance with Company 20
Closing Balance in separate CSR unspent account 52
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ts for the year 31 March 2025

28

Earnings per share

Particulars

Basic and diluted profit per share
Profit after tax

Number of weighted average shares idered for

Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing p

Add : Dilutive effect of stock options

of basics earning per share

Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of diluted eaming per share
Earning per share

Nominal value of share (in INR)
Eamings per share - Basic (in INR)
Eamnings per share - Diluted (in INR)

i) Profit attributable to equity sharcholders

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2024

11.070 10,077
3,33,46,141 3,33,46,125
- 3,19.005
3,33.46,141 3,36.65,129
2 2

33.20 30.22
33.20 29.93

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (basic) 11,070 10,077
Dilutive effect of stock options = -
Profit attributable to equity sharcholders (diluted) 11,070 10,077

i) Weighted-average number of ¢quity shares

Weighted-average number of equity shares (basic)
Dilutive effect of stock options

31 March 2025
3,33,46,141

For the vear ended

31 March 2024
3,33,46,125
3,19.005

Weighted-average of equity shares (diluted)

3,33.46,141

3,36,65,129

Related party disclosures
Relationship
a) Holding company

b) Subsidiary

¢) Key management personnel

d) Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel or relative of

Key Management Personnel has significant influence

¢) Group entity
f) Fellow subsidiary

Name of the

Jaipur Gems and Handicrafis Private Limited

Starfire Gems Private Limited

StudioC Inc

TCL North America
Tata Sons Private Limited

Titan Company Limited

* Represenis amount less than INR 50,000

Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below:

Titan Company Limited
StudioC Inc
Mr. Saumen Bhaumik (w.e f |5 August 2024)

M
M

=85

Avnish Anand, Managing Director (Resigned w.e.f 15 Aupust 2024)
Mithun Padamn Sacheti, Managing Director (Resigned w.e.f 28 November 2023)

Mr. Bhaskar Bhat, Non-executive Director (Resigned w.e f 28 August 2024)

Mr. Ashok Kumar Sonthalia, Director

Mr. C K Venkataraman, Non-executive Director (w.e.f 22 December 2022)

M
M

=

Ajoy Hiro Chawla, Non-executive Director

=

Haresh Ram Chawla, Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f 20 June 2024)

Ms. Neelam Chhiber, Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f 20 June 2024)
Ms. Revathi Kant, Additional Director { w.e.f 17 September 2024 )

Mr. Manoj Bhanawat, Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Kalyanibhai Sathish Kumar Rhonac (Company Secretary) (w e.f 20 June 2024)

Microgo, LLP (till 28 November 2023)

Jaipur Gems and Handicrafis Private Limited (till 28 November 2023)

Starfire Gems Private Limited (till 28 November 2023)

Luxury Online Retail India Private Limited (till 28 November 2023)

M/s Yashrey (till 28 November 2023)
Tata Sons Private Limited

Titan Commodity Trading Limited
TCL North America

ature of transaction

Sale of products
Reimbursement of expense payable

Purchase of goods
Sale of products
Rent payable

Sale of products

Purchase of goods

Impairment of Loan Receivable
Impairment of [nvestment
Corporate expense cross charge
Loan given during the year #
Interest on loan

Sale of products
Royalty

Royalty

Reversal of Royalty

Rent and miscellangous income

Reimbursement of expenses - Encircle
Reimbursement of Insurance, salary and other expenses
Interest on Corporate guarantee *

ncludes unrealised gamn of INR 128 Lakhs (Previous year : INR 43 Lakhs)

For the vear ended

31 March 2025

3,075

4,989
109
157
128
179

1.112
627

102

298

31 March 2024

22
18

11
4,129

356
2,863
285
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29  Related party disclosures (continued)

Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below (Contd):

|
N I e ar ended
ame of the related party 31 March
Titan Commodity Trading Limited Commodity Trading Transactions
Cash Margin money 116
Interest income 103
Commission on commodity trading services 17
M/s Yashrey Rent - 310
Key management personnel Short term employee benefits 790 6,199
Long term employee benefits - Gratuity 6 40

Transactions with the related parties during the vear are set out in the table below

- ; T For the year ended
Nume of thie related party Nature of transaction =

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Neelam Chhiber Sitting fees 4 19
Haresh R Chawla Sitting fees 4 16
Bhaskar Bhat Sitting fees 4 15
Neelam Chhiber Commission to Directors* 13 21
Haresh R Chawla Commission to Directors* 12 21
Bhaskar Bhat Commission to Directors* 9 14
Sandeep Anant Kulhalli Commission to Directors* - 4

* excludes provision for commission payable to directors for year ended 31 March 2025 amounting to INR 14 Lakhs

Balances as on balance sheet date

Naiure Asat
— 31 March
Studio C Inc Trade receivable 953
Interest receivable -
Loan receivable -
Investment in share capital -
Titan Company Limited Trade payable - 3
Royalty Payable - 5
Trade receivable - 12
Advance to supplier 19 23
TCL North America Trade receivable 502 -
Tata Sons Private Limited Royalty payable 623 451
Titan Commodity Trading Limited Cash margin receivable 4,265 1,502
Interest receivable 58 25
Trade payable 647 112
Key management personnel Long term employee benefits - Gratuity 13 60
Short term employee benefits - Leave encashment 9 22
Notes:
a) The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company and relied upon by the
auditors
30  Leases

30.1  Amounts reconised in balance sheet

As at As it

Particalnrs 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(i) Right-of-use assets 6

Buildings 24,617 24,611

(ii) Lease liabilities

Non-current 15(ii) 33,248 30,791

Current 18(ii) 5,182 4.457
38,430 35,248 |

(iii) Lease receivables

Non-current T(iii) 9,381 7,462

Current 11(v) 1,637 1.151
11,018 8,613

302 A recognised in the st of profit and loss

Asat As at

Particnlars 31 March 2025 31 Marchi2024

(i) Depreciation and amortisation expense

Buildings 26 4,550 4,630
(ii) Interest expense (included in finance cost) 25 3,027 3,082
(iif) Interest income on sub-lease (included in other income) 22 817 692
(iv) Expense relating to short-term leases 27 229 192
(v) Expense relating to variable lease payments 27 45 23

(a) Short-term lease has been accounted for applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116 - lease and accordingly recognized as expenses in the standalone statement of profit and loss

(b) For total outflow for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 refer cash flow statement
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30  Leases (continued)

30.3 Maturity Analysis of Lease Payments

Particulars Asat
31 March 2025 [
5,790 5410

Upto | year

1102 years 5,689 5210
2103 years 517 5,087
3104 vears 4,248 4,550
4105 years 4,025 3,544
Above 5 years 14,585 14,022
M 39.506 37.833

30.4 Additional information on variable lease payment:

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has incurred an amount of INR 45 lakhs (Previous year: INR 23 lakhs) on account of variable lease payments. Variable
payment terms ranges from of net sales from a particular store. Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base for newly
established stores and stores in malls. Excess of variable lease payments that depend on sales, over the fixed rental, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which the condition that triggers those payments occur.

30.5 Additional information on extension/termination of
Extension and termination options are included in 2 number of property lease arrangements of the Company. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable based on mutual consent of the Company and

respective lessors

31  Employee benefit obligations

a) Defined contribution plan
The contributions recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss during the year are as under:

Asat As at

Earticolars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Employee provident fund 388 397
Employee state insurance 0 I

b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (non-funded)
Under the defined benefit plan, the company provides for a lumpsum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and

years of employment with the company.

The plan typically exposes the company to actuarial risk such as interest risk and salary risk.
I Tnterest risk A movement in the bond interest rate will impact the plan liability. o _
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

participants, as such an increase in the salary of the plan participants and vice-versa

| Salary risk

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Asal Asat

Yol
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
6.60% 7.20%

Discount rate (p.a)
Salary escalation rate (p.a.)

- Corporate 10.52% 10.95%
- Non-corporate 10.57% 10.60%
- Manufacturing 11.18% 11.09%
Attrition rate

- Corporate 22.33% 22.33%
- Non-corporate 22.67% 22.67%
- Manufacturing 4.00% 4.00%

- The employees of the Company are assumed to retire at the age of 58 years
- The mortality rates considered are as per the published rates in the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate table

Sensilivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding

all other assumptions constant

For the period ended 31 March 2025

Particulars
Discount rate Esealation rate

Defined benefit obligation when a pilus 100 bips for respective rates is applied
Defined benefit obligation when a minus 100 bps for respective rates is applied 1,663 1,460
For the period entded 31 March 2024

Particulars
Discount rate Escalation rate

Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates i5 applied

Defined benefit obligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 1,379 1,297
Maturity profile DR I Ax
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Expected benefits for year 1 208 199
Expected benefits for year 2 212 185
Expected benefits for year 3 221 185
Expected benefits for year 4 207 183
Expected benefits for year 5 180 164
Expected benefits in next 5 years and above 1,691 1483

The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 6.60 years ( Previous year 6.25 years }
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31 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in the standalone siatement of profit and loss are as follows:

Asat Asat

el 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current service cost 323 202
Interest on net defined benefit liability 89 57
Total expense charged to the standalone statement of profit and loss 412 259

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:

Particilars Asal Asat
= 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 44 66
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions - 49
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes (22) 261
Remensurements during the year 22 376

The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Salaries, wages and bonus' line item in the standalone statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement
of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income. The amount included in the standalone balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its
defined benefit plans is as follows:

Particulars anal L
= 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening defined benefit liability 1,336 874
Current service cost 323 202
Interest on defined benefit obligations 89 57
Amount recognised outside the standalone statement of profit and loss account

- Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 44 66

- Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions - 49

- Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes 22) 261
Benefits paid 237) (173)
Liabilities assumed / settled 19 -
Closing defined benefit liability 1,553 1,336

c) Compensated absences

This provision covers the Company's liability for earned leave

Provision as at 31 March 2025 amounting to INR 708 lakhs (2024: INR 586 lakhs) is presented as current, since the company does not have an unconditional right to defer the
settlement for atleast twelve months after the reporting date

Similar assumptions have been made as per the defined benefit plan
The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Salaries, wages and bonus' line item in the statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement of the net
liability is included in other comprehensive income. The amount included in the standalone balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its compensated absences|

is as follows:
Particulars ARl il
J i 31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Compensated absences 708 586
708 586

d) Long Term Incentive Plan and Titan Performance Stock Options

During the year the Company has introduced cash based Long Term Incentive Plan and Performance Stock Unit (PSU) plan of parent company for eligible employees. These plans
are based on the future targeted performance of the Company covering a period FY 2024-25 to 2026-27, The management of the Company has done a probability assessment and
believes that the company will not be able to achieve the targeted performance. Accordingly no provision has been accounted for the current year.

32 Operating segment

The Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM’) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators by industry
classes. The Managing Director have been identified as the CODM. Accordingly, segment information has been presented for industry classes. The operating segment has been
identified to be "Jewellery" as the CODM reviews business performance at an overall Company level as one segment

33 Right to recover returned goods and liability for sales return
The Company has a retum policy whereby customers can return the jewellery purchased by them within a period of 15 days. Therefore based on the expected sales return the
company creates a contract liability on sale value and corresponding contract asset towards cost of sales for such sales retumn in the financial statement for the year ended 31 March|
2025.

Asal Asat

Nafure

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Liability for sales return

Opening balance 684 472
Less: Provision reversed towards sales returns (684) {472)
Add: Provision towards sales return created 444 684
Closing balance 444 684)

Right to recover returned goods

Opening balance 442 311
Less: Provision reversed towards sales returns (442) (311)
Add: Provision towards sales return created 320 442

Closing balance 320 442|
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34

35

(a)

(b)

Commercial paper

The following tables set forth, for the period indicated, details of commercial paper:

31 March 2025

Maturities 0-1 Month 2-3 Months

Face value - 20,000 -
Carrving value = 19.736 -
e s

31 March 2024
Maturities 0-1 Month 2-3 Months

Face value - - -
Carrving value = - =]
=== —

(a) The following tables set forth, ratings assigned by credit rating agency at 31 March 2025
Instrument ICRA CRISIL

Commercial paper ICRA [A1+] (Reaffirmed) ‘ CRISIL AAA/Stable

(b) Movement of Commercial Paper :

Particulars For thie year ended 31 March 2023 Forthe year ended 31 March 2024
Opening Balance - 21,262
Additions during the year 113,171 61,930
Repavments during the vear 93,435 83.192
Closing balance 19,736 -

Contingent liabilities and commitments

The Supreme court of India in the month of February 2019 had passed a judgement relating to definition of wages under the Provident Fund Act,1952. However, considering that
there are numerous interpretative issues relating to this judgement and in the absence of reliable measurement of the provision for the earlier periods, the Company has made a
provision for provident fund contribution based on it's interpretation of the said judgement. The Company will evaluate its position and update its provision, if required, on|
receiving further clarity on the subject. The Company does not expect any material impact of the same

During financial year 2021-22, the Company received Show Cause Notice (*SCN”) dated 28 March 2022, from the office of the Directorate of Enforcement, Government of Indial
(‘DOE’) alleging that the Company received Foreign Direct Investment (‘FDI’) during the year(s) 2011 to 2014 in lieu of issue of shares to overseas investors, which was utifised|
in Single Brand Retail Trading activities without prior approval from the Government of India/ Reserve Bank of India The show-cause notice pertained to an alleged violation off
FEMA Rules as Foreign Direct Investment in single-brand retail was not permitted under automatic route in above stated periods

The Company, based upon the management briefing, approached a former Chief Justice of India, Supreme Court who had opined that CaratLane was not in violation of the FEMA
rules as at the relevant period, it was only engaged in permitted activities and was not engaged in retail trade Furthermore, during financial year 2022-23, the Company filed|
detailed reply to the DOE with clarification vide their letter dated October 28, 2022. Thereafter, the Company also preferred a Writ Petition bearing No. 30893 of 2022 (“Writ
Petition™), filed before the Hon’ble High Court of Judicature at Madras (*Hon’ble Court’), challenging the SCN and proceedings before DOE. The same was heard by the Ion'ble
Court on November 21, 2022, and DOE was directed to file a counter-affidavit as its response, within 4 weeks, However, DOE has filed its counter affidavit and served the same
upon Company on 26 June 2024. A rejoinder will be filed by the Company, in order to complete the pleadings in this matter. The listing of the matter for hearing before Hon'ble
Court has not been notified till date

Based on the legal opinion received and its assessment of transactions and provisions of FEMA Rules for the years under consideration, the Management considered that no
provision is required to be carried in the financial statements as at 31 March 2025 in relation to the above matter. The Management would re-evaluate this position in subsequent
period, based on outcome of proceedings before the Hon’ble Court and DOE
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36
36.1

36.4

Financial instruments
Categorics of financial instruments

Financial assets

a. Measured at amortised cost

- Loans to employces (Refer note 11(iv)) 94 128
- Sccurity and other deposits (Refer note 7(iii) and note 11(v)) 2.853 2446
- Trade receivables (Refer note 1 1(i)) 2,110 2,169
- Cash and cash cquivalents (Refer note 11(ii)) 4,234 2,111
- Other bank balances (Reler note 11(ni)) 837 504
- Leasce receivables (Refer note 7(iit) and note 11(v)) 11,018 8,613
=Other Tinangint assers (fefer note Toud and note [1iv) 6933 44
Total financial axsets measured st amortised cost 2B ATT 25378
Total financlal sty 25079 25375

As at I Afarch 2025 As b 31 Manch 2024

Particolars

a. Measured af falr value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

= Gold on loan { Refer note IR (i) ) T 196 40,230
Tatal financial Habilitics measured at FYTPL (a) T6,696 40,220
. Measured at amartised cost

- Borrowings 73.046 59.226
- Rental deposits 613 840
- Tradc pavables 26,396 25.833
- Lease liabilitics 38,430 35248
- Other financial liabilities 3,458 2.842

Tatal financial labilities measared gt amortised cost (b 141,943 133,989

Tatal Nnincial labilities In + l.1l .’E,EJ‘) 164,209

(i) Fair value hierarchy
This note explains aboul basis for determination of fair valucs of various financial asscts and liabilitics:

Fevel 1 Level 3 Total

Particulars
Financial assets and labilitics measured at fuir value - March 31, 2025
Financial liabilitics

= Gold loan T6.6% . = 76,696
Total financial asseis 6800 - - T 006

Lievel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tofal

Particulars
Financial asscts and liabilities measured at fair value - March 31, 2024

- Gold loan 40,220 - = 40.220
Total financial asiets 40,220 - - 40,2200

Level 1: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes lisled equity instruments, mutual funds. The fair value of all cquily instruments that are traded in the stock
exchanges is valued using Lhe closing price at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing net asset value,Gold loan which arc to be repaid based on quoted price as on lhe dalc of the
repayment. The Gold loan has been valucd at the closing gold rates,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments thal are not imded in an active market (for example: Over-lthe-counter derivalives) is d incd using valuation i which imize Lhe usc of obscrvable
data and rely as litle as possible on entily-specifi i If all signi inputs required to fair value an instrumenl arc obscrvable. the instrument is included in level 2

Level 3: 17 one or morc of the significant inputs is not based on obscr able market data. the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case of unlisted instruments, deposils, employee loans cic.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific value techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- the use of quoted markel prices for listed instruments

- the fair valuc of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(ili) Fair valuc of financial asscts and financial liabilitics that arc not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
The carrying values of financial assets and liabititics approximale the fair values

Financial risk manapgement

The Company has in place a Risk management framework to identify, cvaluate business risks and challenges across the Company both at corporate level as also separately for cach business division. These risks
include market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company minimiscs the ciTcets of these risks by using derivatiyc financial instruments to hedge risk exposures. The usc of derivative financial instraments and investment of excess liquidity is governed by the
Company’s policies approved by the Board of Dircclors, which provide written principles on the usc of such instruments consistenl wilh the Company s risk management stratcgy.

The Company docs not cnter into or trade financial instruments including derivative financial instruments. for speculative purposcs

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company deals majorly with creditworthy counterparties and obtains
surl'lclcnl collateral, where appropriale as 2 means of mitigating (he risk of financial loss from defaults. Credil risk is managed by the Company through approved credit norms, cslablishing credil limits and

itoring the i thiness of to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss
modcl Lo asscss the impairment loss. Credit risk arises principally from the Company s receivables from customeINR Credit risk on liquid funds is limiled because the counterparties are banks. Refer note L1(ii) for
the disclosures for trade roccivables

Liquidity risk
The Company invesls its surplus funds [rom lime-to-lime in various short-lerm instruments. Security of funds and liquidiry shall be the primary consideration while deciding on the type of investments. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves. banking facilitics and reserve borrowing facilities. by conlinuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity
profilcs of financial asscts and liabilities. The company expects to meet its other obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial asscls

Liquidity risk tables
The following table below analyses the Company”s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilitics that are nel scutled
The tables have been drawn on an undiscounted basis based on the carlicst date on which the Company can be required (o pay.

Secured bank everdrafi/term loan facility

- amount used 50.970 35.827
- amount unused 5.530 20,173
Secured gold on loan lacility, payable

- amount used 76.696 40.220

- amonnt nnused 5.304 4.780
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36.4 Ligquidity risk (continucd)
Liguidity and interest risk tables
The following tablcs details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn on an undiscounted cash flows ]

financial liabilities based on (he carlicst date on which the Company can be required Lo pay

Less than 3

Contractual maturities of fnancial labititics >3 minths

inuntlis

Asat
31 March 2025
Non-derivative

- Sccurity deposils - 1,026 1.026
- Borrowings 72.856 190 73,046
- Trade payables 26,396 - 26,396
- Gold loan 16,971 59,725 76.696
- Leasc liabilities 2,038 50.955 52,993
= Other financial lisbiliticy 2932 L1349 4071

Total non-derivative liabilities 121,193 113.035 234,228

Less thian 3

Contractual maturiiles of Mnincial Tabifities >3 mantls Total
manihs

Asatl
31 March 2024

Non-derivative

- Sccurity deposits 2 838 840
- Borrowings 42,718 16,714 59,432
- Trade payables 25.833 - 25.833
- Gold loan 17.260 23,034 40,294
- Leasc liabi 1,785 45,747 47.532
- Other Gnaneial Habilities 2008 1.2K3 3402

Total non-derivative liabilitics

177,333 |

36.5 Market risk
The market risks to which the Company is exposed are price risk and forcign currency risk
Price risk
The Company is exposed 1o ions in gold price (i i ions in forcign currency) arising on purchase/ sale of gold

To manage the variability in cash [ows. the Company enters into derivative financial instruments 1o manage the risk associated with gold price fluctuations relating to all the highly prabable forecasted transactions,
Such derivative financial instruments are primarily in the nature of future and forward commodily contracts and forward forcign exchange contracts. The risk management strategy against gold price fluctuation also
includes procuring gold on loan basis, with a flexibility 1o fix price of gold al any lime during the tenor of the loan

The use of such derivative financial instruments is governed by the Company’s policics approved by the Board of Directors, which provide wrilten principles on the use of such inslruments consistent with the
Company’s risk management sirategy

As the valuc of the derivative instrument generally changes in responsc 1o the value of the hedged item. the i i ip is
The following (able gives details of contracts as at (he end of the reporting ycar:
Fair value hedges Scll future and forward contracts:

tity of hedge
(Per gram) instrmments (kiesy

Partkculiars Nabwre of Hedpe Nomlnal amouet

31 March 2025 Fair value 9.049 424 IR 30K

31 March 2024 Falr valug 6,770 171 LL377

Fair value hedge

The Company desi; derivative as hedging i (0 mitigate Ihe risk of change in fair value of hedged item due to movement in gold prices, Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments and
hedged ilems that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Therefore, there will be no impact of the fluctuation in the price of the gold on the Company's profit|
for the period

The table below shows the position of hedging instruments and hedged items as on the balance sheet date:

As at 31 March 2025;

Carrving vilue of

. Impract of fair
Maturity dat
Hedped item Hlediing instrument = Yo value hedsio
Hedged ilem = fixed gold IR I68 - 3 otiths (1.360) lmenorics
Hedging instmument + dernatives - (103} Upto 6 months {13} Other financial assets/ other liabilitics

Comumindily price riak Disclivure in balante sheet

As ut 31 March 2024 1

Carrving valie of Matiirity date Tmpact of fair
Hedged ifom Hedzing insirament £ valite hedze
Hedged item - fived pold 11,577 z 3 months (3K3)  Inveniories
Hedging instrument - derivalives - (1)  Upto 6 months (1) Other financial assets/ other liabilitics

Commodity price risk Distlonure In bilanee sheet

Forcign currency risk management

The Company is exposed (o foreign exchange risk arising through its sales and purchases denominated in various foreign currencics

(i) The risk management stratcgy on forcign currency exchange fluctuation arising on account of purchase/ sale of gold is covered above

(iiy In respect of normal purchase and sale transactions denominated in foreign currency. contracts are measured at fair value through the standalonc statement of profit and loss
The carrying amount of (he Company's forcign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilitics at the end of the reporting ycar are as follows:

Outstanding in USD
Owistanding w INR

Farcign currency sensi

1,033 4.968

The Company is mainly exposed to USD. The Company's scnsi

The seusilivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monctary ilems and adjusts their translation at the period cnd for a 1% change in foreign currency rales. There is an increase in profit
or equity by INR 3 lakhs where [he INR sirengthens 1% against the relevant currency. For a 1% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency. there swould be a comparable decrease in profit or equity

10 a 1% increase and decrease in the INR against the relevant forcign currencies is prescnied below:

In managemen's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk (hat changes in market interest rates will lead lo changes in fair value of financial instruments or changes in interest income. expense and cash fows of the Company.

The Company is subject to variable interest rates on some of its interest bearing liabilitics. The Company’s interest rate exposure is mainly relaled Lo debl obligations. The Company also uscs a mix of interest ratc
sensitive financial instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations like short term loans

As al 31 March 2025 and 2024, financial liabilities of INR 73.046 Lakhs and INR 59.226 Lakhs, respectively. were subject to variable interest rates

The model assumes (hal interest rate changes are instantancous parallel shifis in (he yield curve. Although some assets and liabilitics may have similar maturities or periods (o re-pricing. (hese may nol react
correspondingly (o changes in market interest rates. Also, the inferest rates on some Lypes of asscts and liabilities may [uctuale with changes in market interest rates. while interest rales on other (ypes of assels may
change with a lag

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shifl of 100 basis points interesl rate across all yield curves, This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance shect dale and has been calculated based
on risk exposurcs outslanding as at that date. The period end balances arc not necessarily represenlative of the average debl outstanding during the period

For a 1% increase/decrease in interest rate. Lhere is a increase/decrease of INR 730 lakhs in finance cost.
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37 Estimaled amount of contracts remaining to be excculed on capilal account and not provided for is INR 434 lakhs (Previous ycar: INR 938 lakhs)

38 Asscis and liabilitics of held for sale

S

=3

See accounting policy in Nole 3(vi)
As at 315t March 2024, the Company had reclassified all assets and liabilities pertaining 1o the silver busincss operaled under the brand name "Shaya" as Asscts and Liabilitics Held for Sale, pursuant Lo the in~
principle approval oblained from the Board of Directors Lo divest the said business

Subscquently. during (he financial year 2024-25, the Company reassessed ils strategic plans and decided to discontinue Lhe sale process. A ingly. the assets and liabilitics previously i as held for sale
have been reclassified back o their respective iesin with i i

A. Asscts and liabilitics of held for sale

As at 31 March 2024, the disposal group was stated at lower of cost or fair valuc less cost to scll and comprised the following asscts and liabitities

Assets 1

Propeny, plant and Equipment 166
Iwentorics 1472
Trade reccivables 98
Advance 10 Supplicr 0
Assets held for sale 1,504 |

Liahilities :

|Trade panables 120
Liabilities held for sale 120 )
B. Cumulative income or exy i in OC1

There are no cumulative income or expenses included in OCI relating to (he disposal group
C. Measurment of Fair Values

The fair value of assets and liabilities held for sale has been catergorised as Level 3 fair value

Financial Ratios

Reanoni

Ruatin

(o} Current ratio Tonl curreni assets Total current liabiiities 0.98 12%]~
. . [»ebi consists of borrowings N
Dch y 3 622 -32%
I} Debi-equity ratio i Lease liabilitics Total cquity 425 %|Refer note (a)
(Exrnings for debl service =
Met Profit afer taxes + Non- | Diebd service = Finance
(c) Debt service covcrage ratio cash operaling expensest casts* & Lease Pavinents 45 88% 20.53% 124%)«
Finanee cosl* + other non cost | + Principal repayments
adiustments)
(d) Return on cquity ratio Prolit for the year Average total cquity 33 46% 132 78% -60% |Hefer nole (b}
(e) Invenlory turnover ratio Com of goods sold Average Imentony 2,18 2.16 1%
e f . Ascrape trade o
() Trade receivables lunover ratio Revenue [rom opertions roschiables 194.09 105.93 83%|Reler note (c)
(g) Trade payables turnover rtio Derived purcliases Average iradé pavables 1430 9.85 45%
Warking capital (
(h) Nel capital turnover ratio Hevenue from operalions Current Assels - Current 2338 (103.88) -123%| Refer nole (d)
Liabilities )
(i) Nel profit ratio Profin for the year Revenue [rom operations 267% 3.30% -19%
Capital employed
! . Profit before tax and finance |« Tangible Net Worth +
18% 0Y -13%|-
(i) Return on capital employed ot Fotal Debt + Deferred % 20% 13%
Tax Linbiliy

* Finance costs includes eily interest paid on debt and leases excluding interesl expense on gold on loan

Notes:

(a) Debt-cquity ratio has decreased owing Lo increase in tolal equity in the current ycar compared Lo previous year.

(b) Returmn on cquity ratio has increased from previous year duc 1o onc lime adjustment (o retained carning owing to comcrsion of ESOP plan

(¢) Trade receivables turnover ratio has increased due to increase in revenue in the current year by 42% with decreasc in trade receivable by 35%

(d) Net capital turnover ratio has reduced during the year due to reduction in working capital by 206% due Lo increase borrowing and payables and increase in revenuc by 42% wlhen

Capital management

eslors, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of ils

The Company’s policy to maintain a stable and strong capital siructure with a focus on tolal cquity so as lo maintai

business. In order to maintain the capital structure. the Company monitors the return on capital, as well as level of dividends to equity sharcholders, The Company aims to manage ils capital cfficiency so as to
safeguard it ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to all ils sharcholders. For the purposc of the Company's capital management. capital includes issued capital and all other cquity reserves
and debl is included as a part of borrowings and gold loan

Total debt *
Tolal equily 26.234
Dicht 1o gehuiiv' mio 278

* Tolal debt includes only borrowings Gold on loan and Icasc liabilities has not been considered for the purpose of above

Other statutory information :

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property or any proceeding which is pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck ofT.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or salisfaction which is yct (o be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond Lhe statutory period

(iv) The Company has nol traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company is not classificd as willful defaulter.

(3i) The Company doesn't have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclased as income during the year in the tax assessmenls under the Income Tax Act
1961 such as search or sunvey.

(vii) No funds have been advanced or loancd or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any olher person(s) or entity(is). including|
forcign cntities (“Intermediarics™). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or cntities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. sccurity or Lhe like on behall of the Ultimate Bencficiarics.

(siii) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or enlity(is). including foreign cntities (“Funding Parties™). with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thal thel
Company shall, directly or indircclly, lend or invest in other persons or entitics identi in any manner by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneliciarics™) or provide any guarantec, sccurity
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciarics

(ix) The Company has not revalucd ils property. plant and equipment (including right (o use asset) or intangible assets or bolh during the current or prey ious year.

(x) The Company has complied with Lhe number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act. 2013

{xi) The Company has not entered into any scheme of which has an ing impact in the current or previous financial ycar
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42 Impairment for subsidiary 'StudioC Inc'

Particulars

Name of the entity
Nature of relationship

Purpose

Asat 1 April

Investment made during the year
Investment sold/ impaired during the year
As at 31 March

Loans

Farticulars

Name of the entity
Nature of relationship
Secured/ unsecured
Purpose

Rate of interest

Term

As at 1 April

Given during the year
Reinstatement of Loan
Receipt during the year
As at 31 March

As per our report of even date attached
forBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

0

Arjun Ra i

Pariner

Membership No. 218495
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 07 May 2025

The Company have investments and loans aggregating to INR 5,098 lakhs a
an exclusive distribution agreement with its fellow subsidiary TCL
distribution agreement with StudioC Inc. w e f January 01 2025, As
investment and loan and disclosed under exceptional items. The carry

43 Disclosure under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

Investment in equity instruments (unguoted) Refer Note 7(i)

For the year 2024-25

StdioC Inc USA
Subsidiary
Strategic investment

109

(209)

For (he year 2024-25

StudioC Ine. USA
Subsidiary
Unsecured

Business support

8%
5 years from the date of
disbursement
4,861

128

4,989

Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

North America Inc, with right to sell and market its products in the North America territory and has ceased the
a result, the Company has recorded provision for impairment charge amounting to INR 5,101 lakhs towards its|
Ing value of provision for impairment as on March 312025 is INR 5,098 lakhs.

s on March 31 2025 with its wholly owned subsidiary ‘StudioC Inc' Further,the Company has entered iiito|

For the year 2023-24

For the year 2023-24

%
2 years from the date of
disbursement
1,998
2,817
45

4,361
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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the "Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together
referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2025, of its
consolidated profit and other comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue Recognition

See Note 3(i) and Note 21 to consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group recognizes revenue when the | In view of the significance of the matter, we applied
control of goods being sold is transferred to the | the following audit procedures in this area, among
customer. A substantial part of Group’s | others, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit |
revenue relates to Jewelry which involves large | evidence- |
1. Assessed the appropriateness of the accounting

number of individual sales contracts having

Regislered Office:
B S R & Co (a partnership firm wilh Regisiration No BA61223) converted inlo B S R & Co LLP (a 14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco |T Park 4, Nesco
Limiled Liability Partnership wilth LLP Registration No AAB-8181) with effect from October 14, 2013 Center, Westem Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CaratLane Trading Private Limited

varied contractual terms with retail customers,
distributors and franchisees.

The Group and its external stakeholders focus
on revenue as a key performance indicator and
considering there are performance targets, this
increases the risk of misstatement of the timing
and existence of revenue recognized.

There is risk of revenue being recognized
inappropriately for sales made through retail
outlets on cash and carry basis and risk of
misstatement of existence of revenue in case
of non-retail sales.

In view of the above, we have identified
existence (retail and non retail sales) and
completeness (retail sales only) of revenue as
a key audit matter

policy for revenue recognition as per relevant
accounting standard.

2. Evaluated the design and implementation of key
financial controls and their operating effectiveness
with respect to revenue recognition transactions
selected on a sample basis. These include general
IT controls and key application controls over the IT
system which govern revenue recognition, including
access controls, controls over program changes and
interfaces between different systems.

3. Perused key contracts with distributors and
franchisees selected using statistical sampling to
understand terms and conditions particularly relating
to acceptance of goods.

4. For retail sales, performed substantive testing
using selecting sampling on sales made at the retail
outlets and tested the underlying documents, which
included tracing sales to collection reports and bank
statements.

5. For sales (other than retail sales), we performed
substantive testing using statistical sampling and
tested the underlying documentation including
verification of invoices, proof of delivery and
collections thereon.

6. Additionally, we have tested the underlying
invoices of the selected samples, verifying attributes
such as price, discount, and making charges.

7. Performed substantive testing using statistical
sampling on the collection report and tested
underlying sales to test existence and completeness
of revenues for Jewelry.

8. Tested credit notes issued to retail customers
selected using statistical sampling on sales return
during the year and subsequent to the year end. |
9. Tested sales transactions using statistical
sampling on sales (where applicable) made
immediately pre and post year end, agreed the
period of revenue recognition to the underlying

documents. |

Inventories

|
See Note 3(vii) and Note 10 to consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter

The Group's inventories primarily comprise
high value items like Jewellery (gold,
diamonds, gemstones etc.). The Group holds
inventory at various locations including
factories, stores (retail outlets) and third-party

o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
others, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence:

1. Evaluated and tested the design, implementation
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited

locations. and the operating effectiveness of key controls that
the Group has in relation to the safeguarding and
There is a significant risk of loss of inventory | physical verification of inventory including the
given the high value and nature of the inventory | appropriateness of the Group’s standard operating
| involved. procedures for conducting, recording and reconciling
physical verification of inventories and tested the
In view of the above, we have identified | implementation thereof.
existence of physical inventories as a key audit | 2. Evaluated the design, implementation and
matter. operating effectiveness of general IT controls and
key application controls over the Group’s IT systems
including those relating to recording of inventory
quantities on occurrence of each transaction,
including access controls, controls over program
changes, interfaces between different systems.
3. For the locations selected using statistical
sampling, we attended physical verification of
inventory conducted by the Group and tested
rollforward/ roll-backward working provided by the
management as at the year end, where applicable.
We have also performed stock counts at stores
selected using statistical sampling. We also checked |
reconciliation of inventories as per physical inventory
verification and book records for samples selected
using statistical sampling.
4. Performed surprise stock count at selected stores
on sample basis.
5. For samples selected using statistical sampling,
we obtained independent confirmations of
inventories held with third parties.
6. Verified the purity of gold content in the jewelry
item using Karat-meter for the samples selected as
part of year end physical verification process and
traced to the halimark. '|

Other Information

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s directors’ report, but
does not include the financial statements and auditor’'s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. !f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
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presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
respective Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consoclidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
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future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

a. The financial statements of the subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs.1,287 lakhs as at 31 March 2025, total revenues (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs.7,250 lakhs and net cash flows (before consolidation adjustments)
amounting to Rs.31 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, have not been audited either by us or by other auditor. These unaudited financial
statements have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this
subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial
statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to the financial statements
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books.

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
%statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
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account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on 1 April 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of the
directors of the Holding Company is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us :

a.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2025 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2025.

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company during the year ended 31 March 2025.

d (i) The management of the Holding Company represented that, to the best of its knowiedge and

(i)

belief, as disclosed in the Note 40(vii) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The management of the Holding Company represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the Note 40(viii) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Hoiding Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Holding Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks the Holding Company have used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved

by the Holding Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.
%/ Page 6 of 10
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the remuneration paid
during the current year by the Holding Company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company is not in
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Minsitry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be communicated
upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

7

Arjun Ramesh

Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 07 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25218495BMOPAV3405
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended
31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination, there
are no companies included in the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company
which are companies incorporated in India except the Holding Company. The Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 of the Holding Company did not include any unfavourable
answers or qualifications or adverse remarks.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

K

Arjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.. 218495
Date: 07 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25218495BMOPAV 3405
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Caratlane Trading Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company , as
of that date.

In our opinion the Holding Company, has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of such internal controls
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Holding Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controts with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financiat statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
I our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Page 9 of 10



BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Z

rjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 07 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25218495BMOPAV3405
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CaratLanc Trading Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, nnless otherwise stated)

Particulars

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work-in-progress *

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Intangibie assets under development
i Other financial assets

Deferred tax assets (net)

Other tax assets (net)

Other non-current assets

Tolal non current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
i Trade receivables
ii. Cash and cash equivalents
iii, Other bank balance
iv. Loans
v. Other financial assets
(Other current assets
Total current assets

Assets held for sale
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

|Liabilitics
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i, Borrowings

iia. Léase liabilities

iii. Other financial liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Provisions
Totat non current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i, Borrowings
ii. Gold on loan
fiia. Lease liabilities
iv. Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small
enterprises
v. Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities
Total current liabilities

Linbilities held for sale
Total liabilities

*Represents amounts less than INR 50,000
Material accounting policies

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accamtanis
ion number: 101248W/ W-100022

Arjun Ra
Partwer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 7 May 2025

As ot
31 March 2024

5() 7.536 8,739
5(Giii) 0 68
6 24,617 24,680
5(ii) 2,632 3,330
5(iv) 448 332
) 11,630 9,712
8 3,418 3,292
8 1,399 1,016
9 6,402 6,583
55,082 57.752
10 174,777 104,028
116) 1,156 668
11(ii) 4,350 2,195
11(ii) 837 504
11(iv) 94 128
11(v) 10,318 5,979
12 18,767 14,066
210,299 127.568
38 - 1,806
268,381 187.126
13 667 667
14 25,770 9,174
26,437 9,841
15(0) 14,146 13,036
15(ii) 33,248 30,817
15(iii) 613 840
16 256 145
17 1,345 1,137
49,608 45,978
18(3) 58,900 46,190
18(ii) 76,696 40,220
18(iii) 5,182 4,506
18(iv)
4,257 3,414
22,233 22,800
18(v) 3,458 2,843
19 20,581 10,172
20 1,021 1,045
H 8 .
192,336 131,190
38 . 120
268,381 187,126
3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Consolidated statement of profit and loss
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ar cnded
arch 2024

For the

Yo bicr ATS
Particulars 31 March 2025

Revenue from operations 21 419,298 308,094
Other income 22 3,666 2,542
Total income (I) 422,964 310,636
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 23 (a) 340,179 201,345
Purchase of stock-in-trade 23 (b) 17,977 24,359
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 23 (c) (53,630) (17.990)
Emplovee benefits expense 24 18,722 17,035
Finance costs 25 9,497 8,117
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 8,838 8,403
Other expenses 27 61,238 57.975
Total expenses (II) 402,821 299,244
Profit before tax (1IT) [(D-(ID] 20,143 11,392
Tax expense (IV)

- Current tax 3,523 3
- Deferred tax 8 (121) 3,530
Profit for the year (A) [(IID)-(IV)] 16,741 7,859
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit and loss:

- Remeasurements of employee defined benefit plans 22) (376)
- Income-tax on above 6 95
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (129) (55)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (B) (145) (336)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 16,596 7.523 |

Earnings per equity share (par value of INR 2 per share)
Basic earnings per share (INR) 28 50.20 2357
Diluted earnings per share (INR) 28 50.20 23.34

Material accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
C lidated stat t of changes in equity

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Balance at the 1 April 2023 667
Changes in equity share capital during the year * 0
As at 31 March 2024 667
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at 31 March 2025 667

*Represents amounts less than INR 50,000

B. Other equity

Reserves and surplus

Other comprehensive income

Particulars - Stock options Retained . "
: I 5
p ) Foreign Currency Re-measurement of

outstanding account cir S &, . N
= I'ranslation Reserve  defined beaefit obligation

Balance at the April 1, 2023 41,141 864 (23,253) (92) (326) 18,334
Premium on shares issued during the year 1 S - B - 1
Profit for the year - - 7,859 - - 7,859
Modification of ESOP Plan (refer note 13) - (857) (15,827) - - (16,683)
Employee stock option expense 7 )] - - - 0)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) - - - (55) (281) (336)
Total comprehensive income for the year (7.968) (281) (8.249)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 41,149 - (31,221) (147) (607) 9,173
Balance as at April 1, 2024 41,149 - {31,221) {147) (607) 9,173
Profit for the year - - 16,741 - - 16,741
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) - - - (129) (16) {145)
Total comprehensive income for the year 16,741 (16) 16,725
Balance as at March 31, 2025 41,149 - (14,480) (276) (623) 25,770
Material accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Consolidated statement of cash flow
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particubars

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

For the vear ended

31 March 2025

For the yvear ended
31 March 2024

Profit before tax 20,143 11,392
Adfustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 8,838 8,403
Interest income (10) (10)
Interest income on sublease (817) (692)
Deferred rental income and rent equalisation (268) (181)
Termination gain on leases (80) (388)
Gain on sale of investment (net) {112) (53)
Finance cost 9,497 8,117
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (1,064) (100)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss 34 -
Property, plant and equipment written off 9 24
Intangible assets wrtitten off 3
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (55)
Employee share based payment - (18)
Operating profit before working capital changes 36,170 26,442
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in inventories (69,277} (14,715)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables {390) 551
Increase in loans receivable, other financial asset and other assets (8,619) 6,417)
Increase in other financial liabilities 1,228 743
Increase in provisions 162 349
Increase in gold on loan and trade payable 36,469 26,068
Increase in other liabilities 10,447 3,228
Cash genereated from operating activities before taxes 6,190 36,249
Income taxes paid (Net of refunds) (3,898) (801)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A) 2,292 35,448
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and intangible assets under (3,066) (6,623)
development
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,826 1,017
Sale of mutual fund investments, net 112 53
Deposits placed during the year (333) (326)
Interest received 15 883
Lease payments received from sub-leases 2,107 1,649
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 661 (3,347)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payment of lease liabilities (4,708) (4,981)
Interest payment of lease liabilities (2,932) (3,011)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 6,996 17,317
|Repayment of long term borrowings (4,475) (1,024)
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) short term borrowings, net 9,360 (13,778)
Finance costs paid (6,279) (5,028)
Share based payments (697) (20,083)
Proceed from issue of equity shares - |
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (2,735) (30,587)
Net cash (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 218 1,514
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 2,195 681
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 2,413 2,195




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Consolidated statement of cash flow
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

FFor the year ended

31 March 2023

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with Ind AS 7
Borrowings

Opening balance 59,226 56,711
Repayment from borrowings (236,963) (577,801)
Proceeds from borrowings 248,846 580,316
Closing balance 71,109 59,226
Bank overdrafts repayable on demand and used for cash management purposes 1,937 -
Closing balance in the balance sheet 73,046 59,226
Reconciliation of Lease liability

Opening balance 35,323 26,462
Payments made during the year (7,640) (7,992)
Non-cash changes 10,747 16,853
Closing balance 38,430 35323
Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 4,350 2,195
Bank overdrafts repavable on demand and used for cash management purposes (1,937 :
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 2,413 2,195

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Material accounting policies and notes to the

lidated i sal

1

BACKGROUND

CaratLane Trading Private Limited (the Company or the Parent Company) is domiciled and incorporated in India under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and its commercial
papers are listed on the BSE. These consolidated financial statement comprise the Company and its subsidiary (collectively, the “Group”). The Group is engaged in activilies of
Manufacturing and trading of jewellery. The registered office address of the Company is 727, Anna Salai, Pathari Road Thousand Lights, Chennai TN 600006

The Board of Directors approved the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 and

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

(i) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS’) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other relevant provision of the act under going concern
asssumption using the historical cost convention on an accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values notified under the Act & Rules prescribed
thereunder. (together hereinafter referred to as ‘Consolidated Financial Statements or ‘financial statements’)

(i) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for the following items:

a. Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value

b. Share based payments that are measured at fair value

¢ The defined benefit asset/liability that are measured at fair value of present value of defined benefit obligations

d. Right of use assets and lease liabilities are measured at fair market value as per INDAS 116

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date

(iii) Use of estimates, assumptions and judgement

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires mar to make jud, , estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies on the reported amount of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates, assumptions and judgement are based on
management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual result may differ from these estimates

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected

Judgements

[nformation about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in
the following notes:

- Note 30 — Leases — whether an arrangement contains a lease

- Note 30 — Lease classification (including the expected general inflation rates) and lease term

- Note 21 - Revenue Recognition

-Note 5(iv)- Intangible assets under development

-Note 31(d) - Long term incentive and Titan Employee Stock Option Plan

Assumptions and estimation

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2025 is included in the following
notes:

- Note 5 (i) — Usefidl life of the Property, plant and equipment;

- Note 5 (i) — Useful life of the Intangible assets;

- Note 35 — Contingent liabililies and commitments;

- Notes 31 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Note 30 — Leases - Lease term and incremental borrowing rate

- Note 36 — Fair value measurement of financial instruments

- Note 21 - Revenue recognition

- Note 20 (a) - Provision for warranty

- Note 33 - Contract asset and liability

-Note 11- Expected credit loss

-Note 8- Deferred tax- recognition and valuation

- Note 19 - Provision for Xclusive points

-Note 31 (d) - Long term incentive and Titan Employee Stock Option Plan

(iv) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates (ie the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ("INR" or "INR"), which is the Group's functional and presentation currency and is rounded-
off to the nearest lakhs except when otherwise indicated

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations (subsidiary) are translated into INR at the exchange rates at the reporting date, The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into INR at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction

{v) Measurement of fair values

Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Group require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values and the valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into a different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement

Further information about the assumptions made in the measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

- Note 36 - financial instruments

(vi) Current and Non Current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle
for determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet Balances that are realisabe/ payable within a period 12 months are considered as current
and beyond 12 months is considered as non-current

(vii) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Company and entities controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Company has power over the entity, is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and has the ability to affect the entity’s returns by using its power over the entity.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line by line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profit or losses. These financial statements are prepared by applying uniform
accounting policies in use at the Group, The excess of the Company’s portion of equity of the subsidiaries as at the date of its investment over the cost of its investment is treated as
Capital Reserve on consolidation

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies and associate company which are included in the consolidation are drawn upto the same reporting date as that of the Company ie
31st March 2025




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Material accounting policies and notes to the lidated i ial

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements unless otherwise indicated. This note provides
list of material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

(i) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange for those

goods or services

Sale of products :
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of customer incentives, discounts, variable considerations, payments made to customers, other similar
charges, as specified in the contract with the customer. Additionally, revenue excludes taxes collected from customers, which are subsequently remitted to governmental authorities
Invoices are usually payable within 120-180 days, except for cash and carry business

For contracts that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is recognized to the extent that is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur

Therefore, the amount of revenue recognized is adjusted for expected returns, which are estimated based on the historical data In these circumstances, a refund liability and a right to
recover returned goods assets are recognized, The right to recover returned goods asset is measured after reducing the average gross margin from the estimated refund liability. The
refund liability is included in other current liability (note 19) and right to recover returned goods is included in other current assets (note 12) The Group reviews its estimate of expected
returns at each reporting date and updates the amounts of the assets and liability accordingly

Advances received for services are reported as liabilities until all conditions for revenue reconition are met

The Group allocates a portion of the consideration received to ‘Xclusive points’ This allocation of the material right to the customer is based on the historical data for redemption of these
Xelusive points. The amount allocated to the xclsuive points is deferred and is recognized as revenue when xclusive points are redeemed or the likelihood of the customer redeeming the
xclusive points become remote, The deferred revenue is shown as liability for exclusive points under other current liabilities

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

« The Group's contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple goods to a customer. The Group assesses the goods promised in a contract and identifies distinct
performance obligations in the contract. [dentification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit
independently from such deliverables.

« Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract, The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration
with elements such as volume discounts, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the
contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct good from the
customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period,

+ The Group uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance obligation. The Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation
on the basis of the relative standalone selling price of each distinct good or service promised in the contract. Where standalone seiling price is not observable, the Group uses the expected
cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each distinct performance obligation

Sale of services :
Service income is recognised on rendering of services based on the agreements/arrangements with the concerned parties
Refer Note - 21 Revenue from operations

Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the consolidated statement of profit and loss using effective interest rate method
Commission income is generally recognized when the related sale is executed as per the terms of the agreement.

The Group has determined that the revenues as disclosed in Note 21 are disaggregated into categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows are affected by economic factors

i (a) Other income
Franchisee Signing Fees :Franchisee signining fees is recognised based on the franchisee stores opened during the year which varies based on the location. It excludes taxes remitted to
the goverment which are receovered from the Franchisee's. (Note 22)

(i) Property, plant and equipment
The cost of any item of PPE shall be recognised as an asset if an only if it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably

Items of Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price/ acquisition cost, net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses and interest on
borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipment up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use

Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment after its purchase / completion s capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Advance paid towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date is disclosed as capital advances under non-current assets

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of
assets that are not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives Repairs and maintenance
costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of property, plant and equipment separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of
the property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful life of
the asset or the lease period whichever is less

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of Property, plant and equipment and are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss when the Property, plant and equipment is derecognized.
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Material accounting policies and notes to the lidated fi ial

(i) Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Depreciati hods, esti d useful life and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using straight-line method to allocate their cost over the useful lives of assets which is as follows:

Management( estimate of Uselut life as per

ssel category -
£o usclul life schedule 1T

Furniture and fittings 10 years 10 years
Computer equipment 3 years 3 years
Computer server 6 years 6 years
Office equipments 5 years 5 years
Jewellery Machine 15 years 15 years
Vehicles 5 years 8 years
Mock jewellery 1 year 1 year
Leasehold improvements - Stores el leas.e period whichever Lease period
is less
Leasehold improvements - Other than stores pEIEC Ieasi: Ipe irslod whichever Lease period

Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during the period is proportionally charged

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Based on
technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates

Intangible assets
(@) Internally generated : Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred

Development expenditure is capitalized as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset Otherwise, it is
recognized in profit or loss as incurred, Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

(b) Amortization

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight- line method, and is included in
depreciation and amortization in Statement of Profit and Loss

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer software 3 years
Caratlane portal 3 years
Amortization method, usefil lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectivel

f appropriate

(iv) Impairment

(a) Financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through the statement of profit and loss. Expected
credit loss is the difference between the contractual cash flows and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive, discounted using. the effective interest rate. Loss allowance for trade
receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL, as required. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is
required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment, that includes forward-looking information

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realizing security (if any is held); or when the financial asset is more than 90 days past due

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credil-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental price on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

i.significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

ii.a breach of contract such as default or being more than 90 days past due;

iii.it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganistaion; or
iv.the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties

(b) Non-financial assets

Intangible assets, Intangible asset under development and property, plant and equipment

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its Non financial assets to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Intangible assets,Intangible asset
under development and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or ch in circ indi that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in -use) is determined on an individual asset basis
unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. Value in use is based on estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the
amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years
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(v) Leases

Group as a lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

a the contract involves the use of an identified asset;

b. the Group has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

c the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone prices of the lease components and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components

The Group recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at
inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of the costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or
site on which it is located

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability

The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful
lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable [mpairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Modification/termination of lease: The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment, A corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero

Variable payments: Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in the Statement of profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments
oceurs

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate applicable to the entity within the Group. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount
rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Group, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental
borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole, Incremental borrowing rate used for discounting has been determined by taking the interest rates obtained from financial institutions for
borrowing the similar value of right of use assets for similar tenure. The rates will be reassessed on a yearly basis at the beginning of each accounting period to reflect changes in financial
conditions. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets

The Group recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Group as a Lessor: In case of sub-leasing, where the Group, being the original lessee and intermediate lessor, grants a right to use the underlying asset to a third party, the head lease is
recognised as lease liability and sub-lease is recognised as lease receivables in the Balance Sheet of the Group. Interest expense is charged on the lease liability and interest income is
recognised on lease receivables in the statement of profit or loss

(vi) Non-current assets or disposal group held for sale :

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than
through continuing use

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying value and fair value less costs to sell

Once classified as held for sale, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, investment properties are no longer amortised or depreciated

Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in balance sheet. The liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet

{vii) Inventories

Inventories [other than quantities of gold for which the price is yet to be determined with the suppliers (Unfixed Gold)] are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The
cost is determined as follows:

(i) Raw materials are valued at weighted average except solitaires which are valued at the cost of purchase

(i) Work-in-progress and finished goods (other than gold) are valued at weighted average cost of production

(iii) Traded goods are valued at weighted average / cost of purchase

(iv) Gold is valued on first-in-first-out basis

(v) Gold hedged through gold on loan and futures contract are revalued at fair value

Cost comprises all costs of purchase including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the Group), freight inwards and other expenditure directly attributable to
acquisition. Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads

Unfixed gold is initially valued at the provisional gold price prevailing on the date of receipt of gold and revalued at the gold price prevailing at the end of each reporting period
Net realizable value represent the estimated selling price for inventories less estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make the sale

(viii) Foreign currency transactions and balances
Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions
settled during the year are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the standalone balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rates on that date. The resultant exchange
differences are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency are translated at an exchange rate that approximates the rates prevalent on
the date of the transaction
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(ix) Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and deferred tax are recognized in consolidated
statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

a) Current income tax: Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the
taxable income for that year. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The Group offsets
current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simuitaneously.

b) Deferred income tax: Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recopnized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and [iabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. The carrying
amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets are recopnized for carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that there is convincing
evidence that taxable profit will be available against which the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is
recognized as an income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered

The measurement of deferred tax refects the tax consequences that will follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date to recover or settle the carmying amount
of its assets and labilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same tax authority and same authority.

(xi) Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, short-term compensated absences and
incentives etc , are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year in which the employee renders the related service

ii) Defined contribution plan

All eligible employees receive benefit from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the Group make monthly contribution to the fund, which is equal
to a specified percentage of the covered employee's basic salary and including other fixed component not linked to the performance of employees. The Group has no further obligations
under this plan beyond its monthly contributions

iii) Post employment benefits

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering all eligible employees. The present value of obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation carried at the year-end using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows The discount rate used for determining
the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date having maturity periods approximating
the term of the related obligation, The Group recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements
of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans recognized
in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to consolidated statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule II1, the Group transfers it immediately to retained
earnings.

The plan provides a lump-sum payment to eligible employees at retirement or on termination of employment based on the salary of the respective employee and the years of employment
with the Group. The gratuity liability is accrued based on an actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary.

iv) Compensated absences
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as an
actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method

(xii) Employee stock option expense

The Group measures compensation cost relating to share-based payments using the fair valuation method in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Based Payment Compensation expense is
amortized over the vesting period of the option on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was in-substance,
multiple awards

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model. The expected term of an option is
estimated based on the vesting term and contractual life of the option. Expected volatility during the expected term of the option is based on the historical volatility of similar companies
Risk free interest rates are based on the government securities yield in effect at the time of the grant

The cost of equity settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in share options outstanding account in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest, The income statement expense or credit for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share

On 13 December 2023, the Board of Directors had approved the conversion of the exisitng ESOP plan to cash settled plan and approved cash settlement of outstanding Vested and
unexercised Options to all eligible employees/ ex- employees on surrender of the said Vested and unexercised Options, The difference between the fair value of options as on grant date
and fair value of options as on date of conversion is debited to 'other equity'

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of options which are settled in cash, is recognized as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding liabilities, over the
period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment, The liability is measured at each reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value of options.
Any change in the liability are recognized in profit or loss
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(xiii) Financial instruments
Recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value Transaction costs that are directly attributable to financial assets and liabilities [other than financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)] are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or liabilities, as appropriate on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to acquisition of financial assets or liabilities measured at FVTPL are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of financial assets

A) Financial assets

Classification of financial assels:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified at

(i) Amortized cost

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

(i) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets

(i) Financial asseis carried at amortized cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets al fair value through comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss .

B) Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement and derecognition:

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the
carTying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

A financial liabilities which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently carried at fair value through profit or loss

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset

Ifthe Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets,
the transferred assets are not derecognized

Financial liabilitics

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and a new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

(xiv) Derivative financial instruments

a. Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in statement of profit and loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair
value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedge relationship, the hedging instrument or
hedged item expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised or no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting

The Group applies fair value hedge for the gold purchased whose price is to be fixed in future. Therefore, there will be no impact of the fluctuation in the price of the gold on the Group’s
profit for the period The Group has designated the trade payables pertaining to gold taken on loan from banks (‘unfixed gold') as a fair value hedge to the corresponding gold inventory
purchased on loan

b. Cash flow hedge
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage risks associated with gold price fluctuations relating to certain highly probable forecasted transactions. The Group has
designated derivative financial instruments taken for gold price fluctuations as *cash flow’ hedges relating to highly probable forecasted transactions.

The use of derivative financial instruments is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on the use of such instruments

Hedging instruments are initially measured at fair value, and are re-measured at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair value of these derivatives that are designated and effective
as hedges of future cash flows are recognised in Other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading cash flow hedge reserve and the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting For forecasted transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the
hedging instrument recognised in hedging reserve is retained until the forecast transaction occurs upon which it is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss If a hedged
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss accumulated in hedging reserve is recognised immediately to the statement of profit and loss

The Group has designated derivative financial instruments taken for gold price fluctuations as ‘cash flow’ hedges relating to highly probabie forecasted transactions
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(xv) Provisions and contingent liabilities

a. General

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognized as a finance cost

Product warranty costs are determined based on past experience and provided for in the year of sale

b. Contingent liabilities
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources When there is a possible or
a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made

. Onerous coniracts

Provision for onerous contracts i . contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under it, are recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating
event based on a reliable estimate of such obligation

(xvi) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and balances with banks. The Group considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity at
the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents

{(xvii) Consolidated cash (low statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows The cash flows from cperating, investing and financing activities of
the Group are segregated

{xviii) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds. The borrowing cost includes interest expense accrued on gold on loan taken from banks
Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the
cost of asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

(xix) Earning per share

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted loss per share is computed by
dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic loss per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive equivalent
shares outstanding during the year, using the treasury stock method for options, except where the results would be anti-dilutive. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e the average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of
the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date

(xx) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'). The Board of Directors of the Company
assesses the financial performance and position of the Company. The Managing Director and Chief executive officer has been identified as the CODM.

The Company operates in one segment only i.e. Jewellery, The CODM evaluates the Company's performance based on the revenue and operating income from the sale of Jewellery
Accordingly, no additional segment disclosure has been made for the business segment.

In terms of geographical segment, since the Company operates only in India, there is only one geographical segment, i.e. India. Accordingly, no additional disclosure has been made for
geographical segment information

4 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise statvd)

|5t

5(iv)

Capital Work in Progress
(A) Movement of Capital Work in Progress
As at 31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2025

Asat
L'April 2024

isation during
the vear

Particulars Additions

Capital Work in Progress *
[Total |
*Represents amounts less than INR 50,000

68 |

As at 31 March 2024
Asat
31 March2024

Asat

. itions
1 April 2023 AR

FParticolars Disppsals

Capital Work in Progress *
[Total 0 192

124 |

* Represents amount less than INR 50,000

Notes :

1. There are no projects as on 31 March 2025 and 3| March 2024 where the project timelines are overdue

2. There are no projects as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 where the cost exceeded the original plan approved by the Board of Directors

(B) Ageing of Capital Work in Progress

As at 31 March 2025

- Amount in CWIP for a period 2
Particulars Total
Less than | vear 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years

(a) Projects 1n progress . - 0
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - 3
Total - - 0

As at 31 March 2024

) Amount in CWIP for a period
Particulars =
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3'yenrs Maore than 3 years

(a) Projects in progress*
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

Total 68 = N = 68

*Represent amount less than INR 50,000

Ageing of Intangible assets under development:
(A) Movement of Intangible assets under development :

As at 31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2025

As at
1 April 2024

Capitalisation during

Particulars Adlditions Reversals

the year

448
443

Intangible assets under development
[Total |

332 | 1,578 | 1391 | 7 |

As at 31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2024

isation during
the year

Asat
I April 2023

s z Capits
Particulars Additions i Reversals

332
2 | 332

Intangible assets under development
[Total |

2.140 | 1,904 |

(B) Ageing of Intangible assets under development :

As at 31 March 2025

Amount in Intangible assets under development for o period

Particulars Tatal

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

(a) Projects in progress 448 - 448
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 448 - - - 448

As at 31 March 2024
Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period
More than 3 vear:

Particulirs Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 yeurs

(a) Projects in progress 332 - + - 332
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - .
Total 332 - - - 332
Notes :

1. As of March 31, 2025, the implementation of the new ERP system has exceeded the originally planned timelines. The project is now anticipated to go live in the financial year
2025-26

2. There are no other projects apart from the above mentioned ERP project where the project timelines are overdue as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

3. There are no projects as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 where the cost exceeded the original plan approved by the Board of Director
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6 Right of usc assets”

Parthcilirs

Asal01 Apn] 2024

Add : Additions

Add Adjustments

Less : Modifications / Terminahions
As at 31 March 2025

Accumulated amortisation
Asal01 Apnl 2024

Add : Amortisation expense

Add Adjustments

Less : Modufications / Terminations
As at 31 March 2025

Net carrying value
*Also refer note 30
7 (i) Other financial assets

Partlcular

Umieeiend, enmyaderand ool

Securily deposils

Lease receivables (Refer note 30)
Deposits under Lien (Refer note 11(u))
Other deposils

8 Income tax

a) The following is the analysis of deferred tax nssets/(linbilitics):

Particulars

Deferred Lax assels

Particulard

Deferred tas anets

Provision [or doubiful trade reccivables
Property, plant and equipment

Employce benefits

Forward contracts

Impariment

MSMEE Payments

Leasc liabililics (net of Right-of-use assets)
Carrvlorward of Losses and unabsorbed depreciation
jon for Property, plant and equipment
Provision [or warranty

ESOP Liabililes

Others

Farticular

Deferred tax assets

Provision for doubtful trade receivables

Property, plant and equipment

LEmployee benefits

Lease liabilities (nel of Right-of-use assels)
Carryforward of Losses and unabsorbed depreciation
ision for Property, plant and equipment

n for warranty

ESOP Liabilites

Others

b}  Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particular

Income tax expenses

Current tax

Deferred tax

Income lax included in other comprehensive income on
- Remeasurement of employee defined benefil plans
Tax expense for the year

Parthculars

Profit before tax

Lnacted income tax ratc in india

Computed expecled tax expense

Effcet of:

Ellect of expenscs Lhal are nol deductible in determining taxable profit

Effect of uilisation of carryforward losses and unabsorbed depreciation against
current years profil

Eflect of imparment

EfMect of tax rates in forcign jurisdiclions

Others

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Asal
31 March 2028

Avat
S0 March 2024

32,797 25,032
5211 12,397
= 2
2404 4634
ELGE XN
8,115 4,879
4,585 4,676
. 1
1.803 1.439
10,897 8.117
24617 24.680

Avat

3 March 2025

Asal
31 Muarch 2024

2158 2.141

9381 7.462
2 .

89 109

11,630 9,712

Apat

31 March 2024

Asal
1 April 2024

statement of profit and
loss

 earning

Anat
31 March 2025

4 [¢))] 3
239 274 513
503 6 78 587

1 1
- 1,284 1,284
. 27 27
511 437 948
1,347 - (1,347)
29 29) -
64 . (38) 26
503 E (503) .
" 1631 o]
3191 3 121 - 3418

Recognised in the ——— " — -
et . statement of profit and Rl iy et A ol
[ April 2023 Jass comprehensive income  retained 38 March 2024
I
17 3) 4
145 . 94 239
345 95 63 - 503
240 - 271 - 311
379 768 1,347
29 » © 29
a7 - 17 - 64
- (4.822) 5325 503
- - 2 - 92
1,403 95 (3530 S8 3292

For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended

31 March 2024

3,523 3
(120 3,530
6 95
3396 3438

For (he year ended

31 March 2025

For (he year ended
31 March 2024

20,143 1392
2517% 25.17%
5,070 2867
(129 »

(136) 663
(1.284)
93)

(24) 3

3402 3533

<) ‘The reconciliation between the provision of ncome Lax and amounts campuled by applying the Indian slatutory income lax rate to profit before (axes:




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the conselldated financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amiounts i INR lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

) The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilitics as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

Tricoiie tax assels {pel)
Current tax liabilities (net)

Net current income (ax asscts at ithe end of the year

Net current income lax assels al the beginnimg of the year

Income tax paid 873
Provision crealed during the year
Refund received during the year * 72

Net current income tax assets at the end of the year 1,016

* During the year ended 31 March 2025, refund had been received for Assessement Year 2012-13 and Assessment Year 2023-24 of INR 167 Lakhs including Intercs on refund amounting lo INR 16 Lakhs

9 Onher noneclarrent aasets

Asat Avul
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Particulirs

Vrneciiredd, camsslerd gooil

Capital advances 77 269

Deferred rental deposil (Refer note below) 248 196

Prepayments 2 58

Balance with government authorities 6,075 6.060
6,402 6,583

Nute ¢

Deferred rental deposit represents discounted value of deposit as per Ind AS

109

10 Inventaries

Awal Asal

Farticulars

31 March 2025 3 March 2024

TRaw mitenaly 24,917 9,241
Work-in-propress 1,978 1,550
Finished poods 130,726 73,604
Slock-in-trade 17,156 19,633

174,777 104,028
Notes :

(1) The inventory mcludes gold purchased on loan from banks amounting to INR 76,696 lakhs (previous year: INR 40,220 lakhs)

@iy Inventory includes t333 kg of Gold out of which 1330 kg arc hedged (hrough gold toan from bank, fulure contracts and open orders and 3 kg are unhedged as at 31 March 2025
Carrying value of the gold pledged as security for Joan is INR 76,696 lakhs (Previous v Inventory includes 871 kg of Gold out of which 863 kg arc hedged through gold loan from
bank, future contracts and open orders and 8 kg arc unhedged as at 31 March 2024 Carrying value of the gold pledged as sceurity for loan is Rs 58,168 lakhs)

(u1) Remawnng value of jnvenlones are given as secunity on pari-passu basis for bank overdrafl and cash card Also refer noles 184i)

(iv) Refer point 3¢+ if) under material accounting policics for mode of valuation

(v) Inventory lying with the job worker amounting to INR 16.194 lakhs (Previous year : INR 3,363 lakhs)

Finuneial assets

(i} Trade reccivables

1 A al
Purtjcular 31 Mareh 2025

Unvecured

Trade receivables, considered good 660 656

Husetvables from selated parties (Refer nole 29) 496 12

Less: Allowance for doubtlis] rade recen ables . .
1,156 668

Trade receirables, credit imparied 24 16

Less: Allowance for doubLlul trade receivables 24) (16)
1,156 668

(a) Ageing of receivables =

As at 31 March 2025

Ouistanding for following perfods from date ol invikee
Particul 5 moni = 2
R Less tham & manth Rl !
1 year Nears
(1) Unicdispritend Ttadd il sdered pood 1132 15 [ ] 0 1136
d Trade i which have significant increase in credit *

23 yean Mure than 3 yean* Total

14 Undisputed Trade Receivables — credil impaired 24 . - - . 24
(1) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good . - -
(%) [3fspastend Trade Reccivables — which have significant increase in credit risk -

(1) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 3 - - - .
Tutal 1,156 15 [ 1 L] 1,150
*Reprevients amnints less than INK 30,000

31 March 2024

Parficulars O wonths 1-2

Lews than & munihs

2.3 years More than 3 years Vutal
L year FEAS 2

(1) Usibizpuied Trade ivables — i pood
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit
ke =
{1443 Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 16 - - - i
{1+) Dispuled Trade Reeeivables— considered pood E

() IMsputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - -

uled Trade Receivables — eredit impaired

(b) Movement in the expected credit loss allowance :

Halance at the beginning of the vear -
Provision crealed during Lhe vear 16
13ad debts wnten ofl during the year . -
Balance at the end of the veur 24 16_

% Co

B
S
a

-



CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year cnded 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

Financial assets (continucd)
(i) Cash and cash cquivalents

Particuls Asat Asal
e 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Caohyom humd 6l 516

Balances with banks :

(1) i current account 3,089 1,655

(i) m EEFC account 610 24
4,350 2,195

Bank overdrafis repayable on demand and used (or cash management purposcs (1,937 -

Cash and cash cquiy alents in the siatement of cash flows 2413 2,195

Note : The balance under current account includes funds in transit primanly for credut card receipts vel to be credited to the Company of INR 615 lakhs (Previous year: INR 495 lakhs)

(N Other bank balances

Partlcalars WA
31 Murch 2025 3] March 2024
Deposits placed for Gold hedging 639 309
Deposils under Lien (Refer note below) 198 195
Total 837 504

Note : Represents fixed deposits placed with banks for duly free gold purchased for export purpose and deposits placed for disputed due of indirect taxes

(iv) Loans receiy able

at Asal
31 ATarch 2025 31 Marcl 2024

Partlealin

Vnsecimred. cumishered pood
Employee loans 94 128
94 128
.

(v) Other financial assets

Axut Avat
31 Miarch 2025 31 March 2024

Partkculan

Fmeenred, ennstelered goid

Leasc receivables (Refer note 30) 1,637 1,151
Sccunty deposits G605 208
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 64 26
Accrued Income (Refer note (b) below) 26 102
Otlier receivable (Refer nole (a) below) 3,657 1,896
Refund receivable from government authoritics 64 1,094
Margin money (or gold future contracts 4.265 1502

10318 5979
Notes :

(a) Balance pertains to amount reccivable from franchisec's towards day to day expenditure
(b) Accured income represents balance lowards bill discounling for vendor invaices and duty drawback receivable

12 Other current assets

Axal Anal
31 March 2028 3 'March 2024

Particulars

Frmeenred, enmvidered goid

Balance with governmenl authonties (Refer Nole (a) below) 15,556 11,996
Prepayments 792 843
Right to recover returned goods (Refer Note (b) below) 319 496
Othier assels - 2
Advance 1o suppliers 21 719

67 14,0166
Note:

(a) Balance with government authorities pertains current and non current GST eredits of INR 21,629 lakhs (Previous year: INR 19,150 lakhs) in respect to GST input crediL, transitional credit, deemed credit and refund receivable

(b) Right 10 recover relurned goods represents the amount of goods expected to be received hy the Company on account of sales return. Also, refer disclosure made under note 33




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

13 Share capital

Asat 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

No of shares Amount No of shares Amount

Authorised share capital

Equity share of INR 2 each with voting rights 49,953,234 999 49,953,234 999
Total authorised share capital 49,953,234 999 49,953,234 999
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital

Equity share of INR 2 each with voting rights 33.346.141 667 33.346.141 667
Total issued share capital 33,346,141 667 33,346,141 667

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 2. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The dividend proposed by the Board
of Directors is subject to approval by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(ii) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme

During the financial year 2017-18, the Company introduced Caratlane Stock Option Plan 2017 ('the Plan'). This Plan supersedes the following stock options and stock option
plans:

a Executive Management Stock Option Scheme 2009

b. CaratLane Trading India Private Limited Stock Option Scheme for Consultants, 2013

¢. Senior Management Stock Option Scheme, 2012

As per the plan, Board of Directors grants options to the employees of the Company. The vesting period of the option s one to four years from the date of grant. Options granted
under the Scheme can be exercised within a period of six years from the date of vesting. For employees leaving the organization, an option can be exercised within 3 months
from the date of resignation,

A maximum of 714,017 options are issuable under this plan. The movement in options issued are as below:

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 491,711

Options granted during the year - - - -
Options forfeited during the year - - (27,100) 436
Options converted to cash settled during the year (Refer note below) - - (464,311) 173
Options exercised during the yvear - - (300) 474

Quitstanding at the end of the vear - -

Opftions cxercisable at the end of the year - - =

Cash settled options

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year

Options granted during the year - -
Options forfeited during the year (15,000) -
Options converted to cash settled during the year (Refer note below) - 464,311
Options settled during the year (16.425) (411,499)
Outstanding at the end of the year 21,387 32,812
Note :

1. During the year ended 31 March 2024, Board on 13 December 2023 had approved the conversion of the exisitng ESOP plan to cash settled plan and approved cash
settlement of outstanding Vested and unexercised Options to all eligible employees/ ex- employees on surrender of the said Vested and unexercised Options. The Board further
approved the net cash payout of INR 20,083 Lakhs (adjusted for exercise price amounting to INR 608 Lakhs as applicable to the respective employees/ ex- employees) to be
paid in lieu of the total 4,11,499 Vested and unexercised Options under the Company's ESOP Plan to the eligible employees/ ex-employees on surrender of the said Vested and
unexercised Options,

Net change after adjusting the ESOP reserve with the consideration has been debited to retained earnings under the head of Other equity, amounting to INR 14,481 Lakhs (net of]|
tax of INR 4,870 Lakhs). For unvested options, net change after adjusting the related ESOP reserve with the fair value on the date of modification of the plan has been debited
to retained earnings under the head of Other equity, amounting to INR 1,349 Lakhs (net of tax of INR 454 Lakhs).

2. As at 31 March 2024, there are 52,812 options outstanding pending settlement, of which 16,200 have vested and 36,612 are unvested, These options have been fair valued at
INR 5,028 per option amounting to INR 2,076 Lakhs. The impact of fair valuation of cash settled ESOP plan from the date of modification to 31 March 2024 has been debited
to statement of profit and loss amounting to INR 166 lakhs.

3. As at 31 March 2025, there are 21,387 options outstanding pending settlement, of which 16,600 have vested and 4,787 are unvested. These options have been fair valued at
INR 3,844 per option amounting to INR 723 Lakhs. The impact of fair valuation of cash settled ESOP has been credited to statement of profit and loss amounting to INR 354
lakhs. Further 15,000 options having value of INR 541 lakhs have been forfeited in the current year.

Fair value measurement

The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date|
and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option

The fair value of the options is estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model with the following assumptions:

Particula

Fair Value 5,027
Share Price 3,845 5,028
Risk free rate (%) 6.73% 4.30%
Adjusted Beta 1.53 0.78
Equity Risk premium 6.52% 5% to 7%
Country risk premium 1.60% 1.60%
India Inflation 4.00% 4.00%
US Inflation 2.00% 2.00%
Average Cost of Equity 13.26% 12.70%

No. of options 21,387 52.812




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

13 Share capital (continued)

and at the end of the year

(iii) Reconciliation of the shares ding at the b

As at 31 Mareh 2025

Asat 31 March 2024

Amount
INR In kakhs

No. of shares

No. of shares

Amount
INR In lakhs

Equity shares with voting rights

At the beginning of the year 33,346,141 667 33,345,841 667
Add: Tssue of shares pursuant to options being exercised by employees * - - 300 0
At the end of the vear 33.346.141 667 33,346,141 667

* Represents amonnt less than INR 50,000
iv) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2025

Particolars o Yo
No. of shares held

Asat 31 March 2024

No. of shares held

holding holding
Laguity shares with voting rights
Titan Company Limited (Refer notes below) 33.343.141 99.99% 33.343.141 99.99%
Total 33.343.141 100% 33,343,141

(v) Shareholding of promoters

As at 31 March 2023

Promoter name y N
No. of Shares: % of total shares
the year

33,343,141

e Change during

No. ol Shares

33343141

As al 31 March 2024

% of total shares

% Change during
the vear

Tian Company Limited (Refer notes below)

Notes :

1. During the year ended 31 March 2025, 3,000 number of shares held by shareholders other than promoters have been transferred to Titan Company Limited. Post this transfer, the company has
become the wholly owned subsidiary of Titan Company Limited

2. During the year ended 3| March 2024, the Board in its meeting held on 28 November 2023 took on record the transfer of shares held by Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti, the Founder and his family
members, Mr. Siddhartha Padam Sacheti & Mr. Padamchand Sacheti (collectively, the Sellers) for purchase of 91,90,327 equity shares representing 27.56% of the total paid-up equity capital of the

Company on a fully diluted basis to Titan Company Limited
3. Includes shares held by directors jointly with Titan Company Limited and Nominee Directors




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Notes ta the lidated for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

14  Other equity

Particulars ey AL
31 March 2025 31 Murch 2024
Securitics premium 41,149 41,149
(Amotints received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities
premiim)
Relained camings (Refer Note 13) (14,480} (31221

(Retained earnings comprise of the Companv's prior years ' losses afier tax}

Forcign currency translation reserve {276) (147)
(Represents reinstatement of foreign currency balances of subsidiary)

Other comprehensive income (623) (607
(Represents actuarial gain or loss on remeasurement of net defined benefit liabrinty)

25.770 9,174
==C

15 Financial liabilitics - Non Current

i. Borrowings

Asat Asal

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
At amortised cost:

Unsccured

Long-lcrm borrowings Term loan (Refer note | & 2 below) 19,033 16,512

Less: Current maturitics of long-term borrowings (4.887) (3.476)
14,146 13,036

Naotes :

1. During the ycar ended 31 March 2025 the Company has taken an additional d loan ing to INR 6,996 lakhs from HDFC Bank Lid. and

INR 4,474 lakhs has been repaid. The closing balance as on 31 March 2025 is INR 19,033 lakhs (PY: INR 16,512 lakhs)

2. The interest rate on these term loan ranges between 7.23% to 7.68% per annum (PY: 7.48% 1o 7.98% per annum) and payable over 60 e¢qual monthly
installments beginning from January 2024

3. During the year ended 31 March 2024 the Company has taken unsecured lerm loan amounting to INR 17,317 lakhs from HDFC Bank Iid for brand
building activitics

4. During the year ended 31 March 2024 an amount of INR R05 lakhs has been repaid relaling to the above unsecured loan

ii. Lease liabilities

Particulars Asm Asal
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Leasc liabilitics (Refer note 30) 33.248 30817
33,248 30,817

iii. Other financial liabilitics

Particulars SEY AT
31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024
Rental deposit 603 580
Cash setded ESOP liability (Refer note 13) 10 260
613 340

16  Other non-current liabilitics

Particnlars Asal Asat
1 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deferred rental fiabiligy 56 75
256 145
Note :

Deferred rental liability represents discounted value of sceurity deposit as per Ind AS 109

17 Provisions

Particulars Asat Asal
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Provision for gratuity [Refer note 31] - Long Term s FEE
1,345 1,137
—— =




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Notes to the i for the year ended 31 March 2025
L{A” amounts m INR lakhs. unless otherwise stated)
—

18  Financial lisbilities - Current

i. Barrowings

Particalars DL SRt
31 March 2025 31 Muarch 2624
Secured
Bank ovcrdrafl and cash credil (Refer Note | and 3 Below) 31,937 35,827
Unsecured
Bill discounting (Reler Nole 2 Below) 2,340 6.887
Commiercial paper (Reler Nolc 34) 19,736 -
Current maturitics of long lerm borrowings (Refer Note 15(i)) 4.987 3.476
55900 46,190
AL =
Notes :

1. Secured against the Company's invenlory, receivables and Property, Plant and Equipment on pari-passu basis. The interest rate on the overdrafi varics
from 7.20% to 9 50% per annum and is payablc at monthly intervals. The overdrall is payable on demand

2, During Lhe year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has cnicred into an arrangement with Reccivable Exchange of India limited and with credit period
ranging belween 84 to 179 days and interest ralc ranging belween 6 80% to 7.35% towards reverse factoring of MSME payments

3. The Company has filed stalements as at the quarier cnd with the banks which arc in agreement with the books of accounts as al respective quartcr cnds.

ii. Gold on loan

Asat Asal
31 March 2025 31 Muarch 2024

Particulurs

Sccured
Payable to banks* 76.696 40.220
76,696 40,220

*Secured againsl inventory and reccivables. Includes amounts payable against gold purchased from various banks under gold on loan scheme. The inferest
rate of the gald on loan varics from 2 25% 1o 5.50% per annum as at 31 March 2025 and is pavable at monthly intervals. The credit period under the
aforesaid arrangement is 180 days from Lhe dale of the delivery of gold

Leasc liabilitics

Particutars Asat Asal
31-Muorch 2025 Alch 2024
Lease liatulities [refier note 30 - Current 5.182 4.506
5,182 4,506

iv. Trade payables

Particulars il Al
: 31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Trade payahles
Qulstanding ducs of micro and small enterprises |Refer nole (b) below] 4,257 3414
Qutstanding ducs of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
- Credilors for goods 11,471 14398
- Credilors for services 10,762 8,402

26.490 26,214

(a) Ageing of Trade Payables :

As at 31 March 2025:

. N hitsianding for following periods from due dale of payment
Particolar
Not due Laas than | vear 1-2years L3 years More thun 3 years Todal
(1) MSME 4,237 20 - - -
(i) Others. 16,192 577 180 #4 -
(o) Disputed duss ~ MSME N M . - - .

{iv) Dispuated chucs ~ Others

20,429 5,797 180 54 - 26450

As at 31 March 2024:

Outstandin ate of paymend
han 1y cary

(1) MSME .

(i) Olicrs 3IM 1456 . .

fiii) Disputed ducs - MSME . = - < - ]
(iv) Disputed dhses — Others - - - = 3 .

24.‘2\1 1456 - - - 26,214

(b) Disclosures requircd under Scction 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpriscs D Act, 2006:

There are no material ducs owed by the Company to Micro and Small enterprises. which arc outstanding for more than 45 days during the year and as at
31 March 2025. This information as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Dexclopment Act, 2006 has been determined 1o the extent
such partics have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company and has been relied upon by the auditors

Asat
31 March 2025

Asal
31 Murch

Particulars

(a) the principal amount and the intcrest duc thereon remaining unpaid lo any supplicr al the cnd of
cach accounting ycar:

- Principal 4.221 3.407
- Interest 36 7
(b) thc amount of interest paid by the buyer in lerms of scction 16 of the Micro. Small and B -

Mecdium Enterprises Developmenl Act, 2006 (27 of 2006). along with the amount of the payment
made (o the supplier bevond the appointed dav during cach accounling vear:

(c} the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has
been paid bul beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under Lhe Micro. Small and Mcdium Enterpriscs Declopment Act, 2006:

(d) the amounl of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year: and

{c) the amount of further interest remaining duc and payable cven in the succeeding years. until -
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of

disall of a deduclibl di under seclion 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act. 2006

4,257 3414

Ducs lo Micro and Small Enterpriscs have been deiermined to the extent such partics have been identificd on the basis of information collected by the
Management




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the lidated fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial liabilitics - Current (continued)

v. Other financial liabilitics

Farticalars A5 Al A
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Capital ereditors 290 112
Cash scitled ESOP liability.(Also Refer Note 13) 713 1.817
Interest payable 467 279
Deposits received 30 -
MTM loss 107 -
Rental deposit - Current 148
Payablc towards margin money (refer nole 29) 637 -
Employce payables 1,066 635
3,458 2,843

19 Other current labilitics

Particulars RERY A
J1 March 2125 31 March 2024
Deflerred rental deposit (Refer note below) 4 42
Statutory ducs 667 554
Liability for sales return (Refer note 33) 444 758
Advance from [ranchisce 36 36
Advance from cuslomers 18.946 8437
Liability for xclusive points 484 345
20,581 10,172
—
Note :

1. Deferred rental deposit represents discounted salue of deposit as per Ind AS 109

20 Provisions

Particulars A3 XKL
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 31) 208 199
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 31) 708 586
Provision for warranty 105 260
1,021 1,045

Note a: Provision for warranty
Movement below is for provision of warmmaniy durine the vear

Particalars Asat As ol

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance 2660 "2
Provisions made during the ycar 105 34)
Ulilsations (89) 273)
Rerversed during the year (171) -

Provision at the end of the year 105 260
—_—




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

21 Revenue from operations

For the year ended

Particulars -
RILEHIATS 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Export 1,209 288
Domestic 401,141 290,202
Sale of products and services 402,350 290,490
Other operating revenue (Refer Note below) 16,948 17,604

419,298 308.094
Note :

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company sold gold bullion amounting to INR 16,948 lakhs (previous year INR 17,604 lakhs) to various
customers dealing in bullion which is disclosed as other operating revenues.

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contracted price 489,179 356,564
Reduction towards variable consideration (69.881) (48.470)
Revenue recognised 419,298 308,094

The reduction towards variable consideration comprises of scheme discounts, incentives, etc

22 Other income

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Franchisee signining fees 383 373
Deferred rental income 219 151
Rent deposit equalization 49 30
Net gain on termination of leases 80 388
Interest income on sublease 817 692
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangibles 1,064 100
Net gain on sale of current investments 112 53
Net gain or loss on foreign currency translation 205 111
Rental income 111 155
Interest on Margin Deposit (refer note 29) 168 103
Export duty drawback 27 126
Miscellaneous income 431 260
3,666 2,542

23 (a) Cost of material consumed

For the year ended

[ e 10 ‘ c
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Inventories of Raw materials at the beginning of the year * 9,271 12,545

Add: Purchases 355,825 198,071

Less: Inventories of Raw Materials at the end of the year (24917) (9.271)
340,179 201,345

*For 31 March 2024 Includes stock classified as assets held for sale (Refer note 38)

23 (b) Purchases of stock-in-trade

For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Purchases of traded goods 17,977 24,359
17,977 24,359

Particulars




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

23 (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

For the year ended

Particulars
U 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Finished goods

- Closing stock * 130,726 75,047
- Opening stock * 75.047 61.835
(55,679) (13,212)
Work-in-progress
- Closing stock 1,978 1,550
- Opening stock 1,550 1.289
(428) (261)
Stock-in-trade
- Closing stock 17,156 19,633
- Opening stock 19.633 15,116
2,477 (4,517)
Increase in inventory (53.630) (17,990)

* Finished goods as at 31 March 24 includes stock classified as assets held for sale (Refer note 38)

24 Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

Particulars
rituiars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus 16,729 14,734
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 31) 388 398
Staff welfare expense 1,849 1,496
Gratuity expenses (refer note 31) 412 259
Employee share based payment expense (refer note 13) (656) 148

18,722 17,035

25 Finance cost

For the year ended

rartienlare
AN e 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest on borrowings (Refer note below) 6,210 5,003
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 30.2) 3,030 3,089
Others 257 25

9,497 8.117
Note:

Interest on borrowing includes Interest on Gold on Loan of INR 1,721 Lakhs and Interest on Bank overdraft of Rs 4,487 Lakhs for the year ended 31
March 2025 (Previous year : Interest on Gold on Loan of INR 737 Lakhs and Interest on Bank overdraft of Rs 4,266 Lakhs)

26 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

Particulars
31"March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 5(i)) 2,363 2,204
Depreciation of right of use asset (Refer Note 6) 4,585 4,676
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 5(ii)) 1,890 1,523
8.838 8,403
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27 Other expenses

Advertising 19,660 22,520
Agent commission 24,680 19,926
Rent (Refer note 30) 618 461
Freight and forwarding 2,389 2,618
Travelling and conveyance 2,415 92]
Professional service charges 3,542 3,934
Bank charges 850 960
Software expenditure 3,308 3,019
Bad debts written off (Net of provision) - 1
Power and fuel 583 602
Communication expenses 174 153
Rates and taxes 225 179
Director sitting fee (Refer note 29) 2 60
Repairs and maintenance 1,243 1,181
Payments to auditors (Refer 27.1 below) 79 55
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer 27.2 below) 217 148
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 24
Property, plant and equipment written off 9 3
Stores and consumables 400 345
Royalty (Refer note 29) 622 456
Miscellaneous expenses 222 409

61,238 57,975
Notes :

27.1 (i) Payment to auditors (Excluding taxes)

For the vear ended

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
For statutory audit 49 28
For tax audit 2 2
For limited review 27 24
Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses 1 |
79 55
27.2 Corporate Social Responsibility:
(i) Gross amount approved by the board and required to be spent towards corporate social responsibility by the Company during the year: INR
148 lakhs

(i) Amount spent during the year on:

For the year ended

i 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1. Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 217 148
2. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 217 148
3. Amount of expenditure incurred on:

-Construction/acquisition of any asset - -

- On purposes other than above 217 76
4. Excess/(Shortfall) at the end of the year - (72)
5. Total of previous years shortfall ©60) -

6. Reason for short fall - -
Health, Education, Skill Health, Education,

development, Skill development,
2 o Disaster relief, Wellness Disaster relief, Wellness
7. Nature of CSR Activities and Water, and Water,
Sanitation and Hygiene, Sanitation and Hygiene,
Entrepreneurship Entrepreneurship

(iii) CSR Contribution to Related parties
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Related Parties = =
Unrelated parties 217 76

(iv) Details of Unspent obligations :

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Particulars

Opening Balance

Amount required to be spent during the year 148
Amount spent during the vear from Company's bank account 76
Amount spent during the year from separate CSR unspent account =

Closing Balance with Company ’ 20
Closing Balance in separate CSR unspent account 52
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28  Earnings per share
Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing per share

i ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Basic and diluted profit per share

Profit after tax 16,741 7,859

Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of basics earning per share 33,346,141 33,346,125

Add : Dilutive effect of stock options - 319.005

Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of diluted eaming per share 33.346.141 33.665.129

Earning per share

Nominal value of share (in INR) 2 2
Eamnings per share - Basic (in INR) 5020 23.57

Eamings per share - Diluted (in INR) 50.20 23.34

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (basic) 16,741 7,859
Dilutive effect of stock options = 2
Profit attributable to :gui!z‘ shareholders (diluted) 16,741 7.859

ii) Weighted-average number of equity shares

For the year ended

forieihe 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
arc| arc
Weighted-average number of equity shares (basic) 33,346,141 33,346,125
Dilutive effect of stock options - 319,005
WeiEhted-average number of equity shares (diluted} 33,346,141 33,665,129

29  Related party disclosures
i) Relationship
a) Holding company Titan Company Limited

b) Key management personnel Mr. Saumen Bhaumik (w.e.f 15 August 2024)
Mr. Avnish Anand, Managing Director (Resigned w.e.f 15 August 2024)
Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti, Managing Director (Resigned w e f 28 November 2023)
Mr. Bhaskar Bhat, Non-executive Director (Resigned w.e f 28 August 2024)
Mr. Ashok Kumar Sonthalia, Director
Mr. C K Venkataraman, Non-executive Director (w.e.f 22 December 2022)
Mr. Haresh Ram Chawla, Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f 20 June 2024)
Mr. Ajoy Hiro Chawla, Non-executive Director
Ms. Neelam Chhiber, Independent Director (Resigned w.e f 20 June 2024)
Ms. Revathi Kant, Additional Director ( w.e.f 17 September 2024 )
Mr. Manoj Bhanawat, Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Kalyanibhai Sathish Kumar Rhonac (Company Secretary) (w.e.f 20 June 2024)

¢) Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel or relative of ~ Microgo, LLP (till 28 November 2023)

Key Management Personnel has significant influence Jaipur Gems and Handicrafts Private Limited (till 28 November 2023)
Starfire Gems Private Limited (till 28 November 2023)
Luxury Online Retail India Private Limited (till 28 November 2023)
M/s Yashrey (till 28 November 2023)

d) Group entity Tata Sons Private Limited
e) Fellow Subsidiary Titan Commodity Trading Limited
TCL North America

Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below:

r ended

1e of the related p.

31 March 2024
Jaipur Gems and Handicrafts Private Limited Reimbursement of expenses - Payable - 22
Starfire Gems Private Limited Purchase of goods - 18
Sale of products - 8
Rent payable - 11
TCL North America Sale of products 2,842 -
Sale of tangible assets 7 -
Right to use intangibles 1,242 -
Tata Sons Private Limited Royalty 627 451
Titan Company Limnited Royalty - 5
Reversal of Royalty 5 -
Rent and miscellaneous income 102 128
Reimbursement of expenses - Encircle 1 30
Reimbursement of Insurance, salary and other expenses 298 538
Interest on Corporate guarantee * - 0

* Represents amount less than INR 50,000
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29  Related party disclosures (continued)

Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below (Contd):

of the related party

Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Cash Margin money 2,763 116
Interest income 168 103
Commission on commodity trading services 30 17
M/s Yashrey Rent - 310
Key management personnel Short term employee benefits 790 6,199
Long term employee benefits - Gratuity 6 40

Transactions with the related parties durin

ame of the related party

Neelam Chhiber Sitting fees 19
Haresh R Chawla Sitting fees 4 16
Bhaskar Bhat Sitting fees 4 15
Neelam Chhiber Commission to Directors* 13 21
Haresh R Chawla Commission to Directors* 12 21
Bhaskar Bhat Commission to Directors* 9 14
Sandeep Anant Kulhalli Commission to Directors* - 4

the vear are set out in the table below:

Nature of trans

Commodity Trading Transactions

ure of ransaction

* excludes provision for commission payable to directors for year ended 31 March 2025 amounting to INR 14 Lakhs

Balances as on balance sheet date

Nume of the related party

Titan Company Limited Trade payable - 3
Royalty Payable - 5
Trade receivable - 12
Advance to supplier 19 23
TCL North America Trade receivable 496 -
Other receivable 1,143 -
Tata Sons Private Limited Royalty Payable 623 451
Titan Commodity Trading Limited Cash margin receivable 4,265 1,502
Interest receivable 58 25
Trade payable 647 112
Key management personnel Long term employee benefits - Gratuity 13 60
Short term employee benefits - Leave encashment 9 22

Notes:

Nature of transaction

a) The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company

30 Leases

30.1  Amounts recognised in balance sheet

Particulars

(i) Right-of-use assets 6

Buildings 24,617 24,680

(ii) Lease liabilities

Non-current 15(i1) 33,248 30,817

Current 18(ii) 5,182 4.506
38,430 35323

(iii) Lease receivables

Non-current 73) 9,381 7,462

Current 11(v) 1.637 1.151
11,018 8,613 |

302 A ts rec t of profit and loss

Particulnrs

(1) Depreciation and amortisation expense

Buildings 26 4,585 4,676
(i1) Interest expense (included in finance cost) 25 3,030 3,089
(iii) Interest income on sub-lease (included in other income) 22 817 692
(iv) Expense relating to short-term leases 25 229 192
(v) Expense relating to variable lease payments 25 45 23

Asat

rended

As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2025

31 Muorch 2024

31 March 2024

Asal
31 Maurch 2024

Asal

31 Mnrch 2025

31 March 2024

(a) Short-term lease has been accounted for applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116 - lease and accordingly recognized as expenses in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

(b) For total outflow for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 refer cash flow statement.
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30.0 Leases (continued)
30.3 Maturity Analysis of Lease Payments

31 March 2025 As nt 31 March 2024
Upto | year 5,790 5472
1 to 2 years 5.689 5,236
210 3 years 5171 5,087
3104 yeurs 4,248 4,550
4to 5 years 4,025 3,544
Above 5 years 14,583 14,022
Total 39,506 37.911

30.4 Additional information on variable lease payment:
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has incurred an amount of TNR 45 lakhs (Previous year: INR 23 lakhs) on account of variable lease payments. Variable payment
terms ranges from of net sales from a particular store. Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base for newly established stores and
stores in malls, Excess of variable lease payments that depend on sales, over the fixed rental, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the condition that
triggers those payments occur.

30.5 Additional information on extension/termination options:
Extension and termination options are included in a number of property lease arrangements of the Company. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Company’s operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable based on mutual consent of the Company and respective lessors

31  Employee benefit obligations

a) Defined contribution plan
The contnibutions recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss during the year are as under:

As al As al

paRticelans 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
388 397

Employee provident fund
Emplovee state insurance

b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (non-funded)
Under the defined benefit plan, the company provides for a lumpsum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years

of employment with the company

The plan typically exposes the campany to actuarial risk such as interest risk and salary risk

Interest risk A movement in the bond interest rate will impact the plan linbility.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants, as such an increase in the salary of the plan participants and vice-versa

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars Al sl
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Discount rate (p.a.} 6.60% 7.20%
Salary escalation rate (p.a.)

- Corporate 10.52% 10.95%
- Non-corporate 1057% 10.60%
- Manufacturing 11.18% 11.09%
Attrition rate

- Corporate 22.33% 22.33%
- Non-corporate 22.67% 22.67%
- Manufacturing 4.00% 4.00%

- The employees of the Company are assumed to retire at the age of 58 years

- The mortality rates considered are as per the published rates in the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate table
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all
other assumptions constant,

For the year ended 31 March 2025

Pirticulars
Discount rafe Escalation rate

Defined benefit obligation when a plus 100 bps for respective rates is applied 1,457 1,296
Defined benefit obligation when a minus 100 bps for respective rates is applied 1,663 1,379
. For the year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars
Discount rate Escalation rate|
Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 1,296 854
Defined benefit obligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 1,379 896

Maturity profil e e
Maturity profile 31 March 2025 31 Mureh 2024

Expected benefits for year 1 208 199
Expected benefits for year 2 212 185
Expected benefits for year 3 221 185
Expected benefits for year 4 207 183
Expected benefits for year 5 180 164

1.691 1,483

Expected benefits in next 5 years and above
The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 6.60 years ( Previous year 6.25 years )
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31 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Components of defined benefit costs recopnised in the consolidated siatement of profit and loss are as follows:

As al As ol
31 March 2025 31 Muorch 2024
Current service cost 323 202
Interest on net defined benefit liability 89 37
Total expense charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss 412 259

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:

Asat Asat

LE I
HELER 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 44 66
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions - 49
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes (22) 26l

2 376

Remeasurements during the year

The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the ‘Salarles, wages and bonus' line item in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement o!
the net defined Tiability is included in other comprehensive income. The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined
benefit plans is as follows:

A _ As al

WD 31 March 2025 :
Opening defined benefit liability 1,336 874
Current service cost 323 202
Interest on defined benefit obligations 89 57
Amount recognised outside the consolidated statement of profit and loss account
- Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 44 66
- Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions - 49
- Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes (22) 261
Benefits paid (237) (173
Liabilities assumed / settled 19 -
Closing defined benefit liability 1,553 1,336

c) Compensated absences

This provision covers the Company's liability for eamed leave

Provision as at 31 March 2025 amounting to INR 708 lakhs (2024: INR 586 lakhs) is presented as current, since the company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement|
for atleast twelve months after the reporting date

Similar assumptions have been made as per the defined benefit plan
The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Salaries, wages and bonus' line item in the statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement of the net liability|
is included in other comprehensive income The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its compensated absences is as follows:

Asal As at

¥ e [ e
Farucis 31 March 2025 31 Mnrch 2024

Compensated absences
Current 708 586
708 586

d) Long Term Incentive Plan and Titan Performance Stock Options

During the year the Company has introduced cash based Long Term Incentive Plan and Performance Stock Unit (PSU) plan of parent company for eligible employees. These plans are
based on the future tarpeted performance of the Company covering a period FY 2024-25 to 2026-27, The management of the Company has done a probability assessment and believes
that the company will not be able to achieve the targeted performance. Accordingly no provision has been accounted for the current year

32 Operating segment

The Chief Operating Decision Maker ({CODM) evaluates the Group's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators by industry classes. The
Managing Director of the holding Company have been identified as the CODM. Accordingly, segment information has been presented for industry classes. The operating segment has
been identified to be "Jewellery" as the CODM reviews business performance at an overall Group level as one segment.

33 Right to recover returned goods and Liability for sales return
The Group has a return policy whereby customers can retun the jewellery purchased by them within a period of 15 days, Therefore based on the expected sales return the company creates
a liability for sales return on the sale value and corresponding right to recover returned goods towards cost of sales for such sales return in the financial statement for the year ended 31
March 2025

Asat Asal

Nalure 3
Alire 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Liability for sales return

Opening balance 758 512
Less: Provision reversed towards sales returns (758) (512)
Add: Provision towards sales return created 44 758
Closing balance 444 758

Right to recover returned goods

Opening balance 496 339
Less: Provision reversed towards sales returns (496) (339)
Add: Provision towards sales retum created 319 496/

Closing balance 319 492|
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34  Commercial paper
The following tables set forth, for the period indicated, details of commercial paper:

31 March 2025

Maturities 0-1 Month 2-3 Months -6 Months
Face value - 20,000 -
Carrving value = 19.736 -

31 March 2024
Maturities
Face value
Cartving value

(-1 Muonth 2-3 Months 4-6 Months

The following tables set forth, ratings assigned by credit rating agency at 31 March 2025

Instrument ICRA CRISIL

Commercial paper ICRA [Al+] (Reaffirmed) CRISIL AA+/Stable

(b) Movement of Commercial Paper :

Particilars For the year ended 31 Mareh 2025

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Opening Balance - 21,262
Additions during the year 3 61,930
Repavments during the year 93,435 83,192
Closing balanee 19.736 H

35  Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) The Supreme court of India in the month of February 2019 had passed a judgement relating to definition of wages under the Provident Fund Act, 1952, However, considering that there|
are numerous interpretative issues relating to this judgement and in the absence of reliable measurement of the provision for the earlier periods, the Company has made a provision for
provident fund contribution based on it's interpretation of the said judgement. The Company will evaluate its position and update its provision, if required, on receiving further clarity on
the subject. The Company does not expect any material impact of the same

(b) During financial year 2021-22, the Company received Show Cause Notice (‘SCN’) dated 28 March 2022, from the office of the Directorate of Enforcement, Government of India
(‘DOE’) alleging that the Company received Foreign Direct Investment (‘FDI") during the year(s) 2011 to 2014 in lieu of issue of shares to overseas investors, which was utilised in
Single Brand Retail Trading activities without prior approval from the Government of India/ Reserve Bank of India The show-cause notice pertained to an alleged violation of FEMA
Rules as Foreign Direct Investment in single-brand retail was not permitted under automatic route in above stated periods

The Company, based upon the management briefing, approached a former Chief Justice of India, Supreme Court who had opined that CaratLane was not in violation of the FEMA rules
as at the relevant period, it was only engaged in permitted activities and was not engaged in retail trade. Furthermore, during financial year 2022-23, the Company filed detailed reply to
the DOE with clarification vide their letter dated October 28, 2022, Thereafter, the Company also preferred a Writ Petition bearing No, 30893 of 2022 (“Writ Petition”), filed before the|
Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at Madras (‘Hon’ble Court’), challenging the SCN and proceedings before DOE The same was heard by the Hon’ble Court on November 21, 2022,
and DOE was directed to file a counter-affidavit as its response, within 4 weeks. However, DOE has filed its counter affidavit and served the same upon Company on 26 June 2024. A
rejoinder will be filed by the Company, in order to complete the pleadings in this matter. The listing of the matter for hearing before Hon’ble Court has not been notified till date

Based on the legal opinion received and its assessment of transactions and provisions of FEMA Rules for the years under consideration, the Management considered that no provision is|

required to be carried in the financial statements as at 31 March 2025 in relation to the above matter. The Management would re-evaluate this position in subsequent period, based on|
outcome of proceedings before the Hon’ble Court and DOE
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36 Financial instruments
36.1 Categorics of financial instruments
Financial assets

Axat

Parifealars '
Parijeald 310 31 March 2014

a. Measured at amortived cost

« Loans 1o employces (Refer note 11(iv)) 94 125
= Security and other deposits (Refer note 7(i) and note 11{v)) 2.852 2,458
= Trade reccivables (Refer note 11(i)) 1156 668
= Cash and cash cquivalents (Refer note 11(ii)) 4,350 2,195
= Other bank balances (Refer note 11(iii)) 837 504
= Lease receivables (Refer note 7(i} and note 11(v)) 11,018 8,613
<Ot financial asseis ROTH 4,630
Total finsncial assets measured at amontised cost 18385 19,156
Total financial assets 28 385 14,186

Financial liabilitics

Asant As at

Particalars

31 March

1Ly 31 March 2024

a. Mcasured at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL'")

= Gald on loan T 696 40,320
Total financial liabilitics measured at FVTPL (a) 76,696 40,220
a Measured at amortised cost

- Borrowings 73.046 59.226
= Renlal deposits 613 840
- Trade pavablcs 26.490 26,214
= Lease liabilitics 38,430 35,323

- Other financial lihililies 3,458 2.843
Total financial Hahilities measurcd at amartised cout th) 142,037 124,436

Todal fnancial labilities (a + h) ]Ill‘?.‘\i 163,666

36.2 (i) Fair valuc hicrarchy
This nole explains about basis for delermination of fair values of various financial assets and liabilities:
Particulirs Tistal
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - March 31, 2025
Financial liabilities
TG - - T6.6%6
T = - Th40G
il il
Particulirs Level 3
Financial assets and liabilitics measured at fair value - March 31, 2024
= Gold loan 40.220 - . 40,220
Tutal financial nsacts 40,220 - - 40,230
Level 1: Level 1 hicrarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed cquily instruments. mutual funds, The Tair value of all equily instruments that are traded in
the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing net asset value, Gold loan which arc to be repaid based on quoted price as on
the datc of the repayment. The Gold loan has been valucd at the closing gold rates
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments thal arc not (raded in an active market (for cxample: Over-the-counter derivatives) is delermined using i i which imize the use of
obsenvable data and rely as litde as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an inslrument are obscrvable. the instrument is included in level 2
Level 3: Ifone or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case of unlisted instruments, deposits, employee loans clc
(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuc Lechniques used to value financial instruments include:
- the use of quoted market prices for listed instruments
- the fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis
(iii} Fair valuc of financial assets and financial liabilitics that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
The carrying values of financial asse(s and liabilitics approximate the fair valucs
Financial risk management
The Company has in place a Risk management Iramework (o identify, evaluate business risks and challenges across the Company both at corporale level as also scparalcly for cach business division
These risks include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk
The Company minimiscs the effects of these risks by using derivalive financial instruments (o hiedge risk exposures, The use of derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity is
governed by the Company’s policics approved by the Board of Directors. which provide written principlcs on the use of such instruments consistent with the Company’s risk management strategy.
The Company does not enter into or trade financial i i i ivative financial i for sp ive purposes
36.3 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligalions resulling in financial loss to the Company. The Company deals majorly with creditworthy counterpartics and
obtains sufficicnt collateral, where appropriale as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Credit risk is managed by the Company through approved credit norms, cstablishing credit
limits and i itoring the itwort of 1o which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company
uscs cxpected credit loss model fo assess the impairment loss. Credit risk arises principally from the Company's reccivables from cuslomers Credit risk on liquid funds is limited becausc the
counlerparties arc banks. Refer note 1 1(ii} for the disclosurcs for trade receivables

36.4 Ligquidity risk
The Company inests its surplus funds from time-to-time in various short-term instruments. Sccurily of funds and liquidity shall be the primary consideration while deciding on Lhe type of investments,
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adcquale reserves. banking facilitics and reserve borrowing facilitics, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities The company expecls 1o meet its other obligations [rom opcrating cash lows and proceeds of maturing financial assets

Liquidity risk tables
The following table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities thal are net sctiled
The tables have been drawn on an undiscounted basis based on the carlicsl date on which the Company can be required to pay.

Securcd bank overdraft/term loan facility, payable

- amount used 50.970 35,827
- amount unused 5.530 20.173
Secured gold on loan facility, payable

- amount uscd 76.696 40.220

= amount unused 5304 4.780
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36.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables
The following tables details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative Ginancial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The lables have been drawn on an undiscounied cash
flows of financial liabilitics based on the carlicst date on which the Company can be required Lo pay

Contractial maturitles of Mnancial Habilites Leas than 3 monih =3 munihs

Asat
31 March 2025
Non-derivative

- Security deposils - 1,026 1,026
- Borrowings 72.856 192 73,048
- Trade payables 26,490 - 26.490
- Gold loan 16,971 59.725 76,696
- Leasc liabilities 2038 50,955 52,993
- Other financial liabilitics 932 L1539 4071

Total non-deri

¢ liahilitics 121,287 113,037 134,324
i e

liabilities Lexs than 3 month >3 months

As at
31 March 2024

Non-derivative

- Sccurity deposits 2 838 840
- Borrowings 42718 16,714 59,432
- Trade payables 26,214 - 26,214
- Gold loan 17.260 23,034 40,294
- Lease liabilitics 1.785 45.747 47.532
= Chber finaucial liabilitics PR RE] 1L.IRS 3403
Total nan-derivative liabilitics 'Lu'wr I?,(-l_s IT’,‘H_S_

36.5 Marlket risk
The market risks (o which the Company is exposed are price risk and foreign currency risk.

Price risk
The Company is exposed to (luctuations in gold price (including Muctuations in forcign currency) arising on purchase/ sale of gold

To manage the variability in cash flows, the Company enters into derivative financial instrumcnts (o manage the risk associated with gold price fluctuations relating to all the highly prabable forccasted
transactions. Such derivalive financial instruments arc primarily in the nature of future and forward commodity contracts and forward forcign The risk strategy against
gold price fluctuation also includes procuring gold on loan basis. with a flexibilily to fix price of gold at any time during the tenor of the loan

The usc of such derivative financial instruments is governed by the Company’s policics approved by the Board of Direclors, which provide writicn principles on the use of such instruments consistent
wilh the Companys risk managemenl stralegy

As the value of the derivative instrument generally changes in response (o the value of the hedged item, the i i ip is

The following 1able gives details of conlracts as al the end of the reporting year:

Fair value hedges Sell future and forward confracts:

ity of hedge

Particulars Nature of Hedpe T )

31 March 2025 Fair value
31 March 2024 Falr valoc 6.770 171 11.577
LB SLE e

Fair value hedge

The Company designales derivative contracs as hedging instruments (o mitigate the tisk of change in fair valuc of hedged item duc to movement in gold prices. Changes in the fair valuc of hedging
instruments and hedged items (hat are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Thercfore, there will be no impact of the flucluation in the price of the
gold on (he Company's profit for the period

The table below shows the position of hedging instruments and hedged items as on (he balance sheet date:

As at 31 March 2025;

Commodity price risk Carrying value of Maturity date Impoct of falr Diselasure in balance sheel

Hedeed item Hedging instrument value hedpe
Hedged item - fixed gold 38.368 - 3 monihs (L360) Inventarics
Hedpging instrument - derivatives . (103)  Uplto 6 months (103) Other financial assets/ other liablities

Carrying value of Maturity date Lpact ol Tair Disclosure in balance sheet
Hedeed item Heduing instrument value hedge
Hedged item - fixed gold 11,577 . 1 months (483) Inventorics
Hedeing instrument - derivatives - {1} Uplo 6 months (1) Other financial asscls/ other liabilities

Forcign currency risk management

The Company is exposed (o foreign exchange risk arising through its sales and purchases denominated in various foreign currencies

(i) The risk management strategy on forcign currency exchange fluctuation arising on account of purchasc/ sale of gold is covered above.

(i) In respect of normal purchase and sale transactions denominaled in foreign currency, contracts are measured at fair value through hie consolidated statement of profit and loss
The carrying amount of the Company's forcign currency denominated monetary assels and monctary liabilities al the cnd of the reporting year are as (ollows:

Quistanding in USD * 5 1 0
Cuilstanding in INR A5 £i) 23
I L — _—

*Represents amonnts lexs thasr 50,000
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36.5 Marlet risk (continucd)
Foreign currency seasitivi

The Company is mainly cxposed to USD. The Company's sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in (he INR against the relevant foreign currencies s presenled below:

The sensitisity analysis includes only outstanding forcign currency denominated monetary ilems and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 1% change in forcign currency rales. There is an
increase in profit or cquity by INR 3 lakhs where the INR strenglhens 1% apainst the relevant currency. For a 1% weakening of the INR against the refevant currency, Lhere would be a comparable

decrease in profit or equity.

In management’s opinion. the sensitiv ity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure al the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during Lhe

Jear.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will lead to changes in fair value of financial instruments or changes in intcrest income, expensc and cash flows of the Company.

The Company is subject (o variable interest rates on some of its interest bearing liabililics. The Company’s interest rate exposure is mainly related to debt obligations, The Company also uses a mix of

interest ratc sensitive financial instruments (o manage the liquidity and fund requircments for its day to day operations like shorl term loans

As al 31 March 2025 and 2024, financial liabilitics of INR 73,046 Lakhs and INR 59,226 Lakhs, respectively, were subject to variable interesl rates

The model assumes that interest Talc changes are instantancous parallel shifis in the yield curve. Although some assels and liabilitics may have similar maturities or periods to re-pricing. (hese may nol
react carrespondingly 1o changes in market interest rates. Also. Lhe inlerest rates on some Lypes of assels and fiabilitics may fluctuate with changes in market intcrest rates. while interest rates on olher

Lypes of asscts may change with a lag

The risk cslimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been
ing as al that date. The period end balances are not necessarily representaive of the average debt outstanding during the period

based on risk exp

For a 1% increasc/decreasc in interest rte. there is a increase/decrease of INR 730 lakhs in finance cost

37 i amount of

38 Assets and liabilitics held for sale

Sce accounting policy in Note 3(vi)

As al 31sl March 2024, the Company had reclassified all assets and liabihties pertaining to the silver business operated under the brand name "Shaya" as Assels and Lial

approval obtained from the Board of Dircclors lo divest the said business

Subsequently. during the financial year 2024-25. the Company reassessed its strategic plans and decided to disconlinue the salc process Accordingly. the assets and liabilitics previously classified as held for salc have been|
reclassified back to their respective categories in i

with

A. Asscts and liabilities of disposal group held for sale

As at 31 March 2024, the disposal group was stated at lower of cost or fair valuc less cost 1o sell and comprised Lhic following asscls and liabi

Assets :
Property. plant and Equipment
Inventories

Trade reccivables
Advance (o Supplier

166
1472
98
70

Asvets held for sale

1.806

Liabilities :
Trade payables

120

Liahilities held for sale

120

B. Cumulative income or expenses included in OCI

There are no cumulalive income or expenscs included in OCI relating Lo the disposal group.

C. Mcasurement of Fair Values

The fair value of assets and liabilitics held for salc has been catergorised as Level 3 fair value.

39 The Group has incorporated a subsidiary namely StudioC Inc on 11 February 2021 and made an investment of $ 1,50.000 in StudioC

The subsidiary company which is included in conselidation and the Company's heldings (herein is as under:

StudioC Tnc

A. Additional information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for (he preparation of C
Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General ion of

Name of the Enthty

Parcnt : Carstlane Trading Priviite
Limited

Subsidiary: SwdieC lne.
Adjustment ariging oul of

United Sintes

Asa

for F

100%

100%

Financial

Financial

Ax at 31 March 2825

Net aksets, e total assels oibnus to1al

i consolidatcy
nol anecis

Arunt

206234

(4. THG)
4.8

Conaolidated profit afier tax
of
Ameunt

1L070

373
3208

1o be executed on capital account and not provided for is INR 434 lakhs (Previous year: INR 938 lakhs)

lics Held for Sale, pursuant lo the in-principle)

Ax at 31 March 2024

total sssets minus total

eopsalidated net Amsatint

ancls
15170

(5.030)
30H)

Consolidated profit

Asa % ol

prrofit

26437

16,741

9841

Name of the Enti

Parent : Camatl.ane Trading Private

As at' 31 March 2025

Share In other comprebesmibve income

of consolifaied
mprehensive
Income

Amouni

Totul comprehensive ncame

As % of tal

Ameount

At 31 March 2024

¢ in other comprehensie I

comsolidi
other
camprehensive
income

Amoint

ptal comprehensive income

As % of tolal other
Amokint

comprehensive income

B. Cessasion of operations :

CaratLane Trading Private Limited ("the Company”) Iias entered into an exclusive disiribution agreement with its fellow subsidiary TCL North America Inc. with a right to sell and market its products in the North America
territory and will ccasc the distribution agreement with StudioC Inc w.e.l 01 January 2025. This strategic decision. taken by Company i
Conscquently, operations under StudioC Inc. hiave been discontinued as of 01 January 2025

. e oy 11054 > 251 130 P.TH
Limied I ( Bt (281} il
Subsidiars: SwdioC Ine Ll * 243 % 200 {2179
Adjustment arksiig ot of - n
e Ly I 5,299 e 35 - y
lidation R (129) 3 99 [ {35) 1% 4
1ihrs (145 1S 16,596 100%s (336} 1%s 7523

aims Lo

and improve regional cfMiciency
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40  Capital manapement

s policy (o maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as 10 maintain {nvestors, credilors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business, [n
n Lhe capital structure, the Company monitors the return on capital, as well as level of dividends 1o equily sharcholders. The Company aims to manage its capital eliciency so as lo safeguard it ability 10
conlinuc as a going concern and (o oplimize relurns to all its sharcholders. For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves and debt is included as a pan of|
borrowings and gold loan.

Total debit *
Total equity
Dichit 1o cauity mtio

* Tolal debt includes only borrowings. Gold on loan and lcase liabil has not been considered for the purpose of above:

41 Other statutory information :
(i) The Group does not have any Benami property or any procecding which is pending against Lhe Company for holding any Benami property
(1) The Group do not have any transactions with companics struck ofT.
(iii) The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet 1o be regisicred with Repistrar of Companics beyond Lhe statutory period
(iv) The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial ycar.
() The Group is not classified as willful defaulter.
(vi) The Group doesn't have any transaction which is not recorded in Ihe books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessmenls under the Income Tax Act. 1961 such as|
search or survey.
(vii) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group Lo or in any other person(s) or cnlity(is). including loreign entitics|
(“Inter iaries™), with the ing. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whalsocver by or onj
behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantce, sccurity or (he like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries
(a1ii) No funds have been received by the Group from any person(s) or enlily(is). including forcign entities (“Funding Partics™). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thal the Group shall. dircctly
or indircctly, lend ar invest in other persons or cntilics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Pany (*Ullimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the|
Ultimate Beneficiaries
(ix) The Group has nol revalued its property. plant and equipment {including right to use asset) or inlangible asscis or both during the currenl or previous year.
(x) The Group has complicd with the number of layers prescribed under the Companics Act. 2013
{x1) The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact in the current or previous financial year
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